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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 44" Annual Report of
Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd. (“The Company”) along with
the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended on
March 31,2022.

FINANCIALPERFORMANCE
The Company's Financial Summary and Highlights are
summarized below

(Rs. in Lakh)

particular FINANCIAL YEAR FINANCIAL YEAR

2021-22 2020-21
Revenue from
Operations(including 36,835.96 26,011.75
other income)
Earning Before
Depreciation,
Interest and Tax 4802.96 2760.90
(EBIDTA)
Less: Depreciation 852.98 759.87
Less: Finance Cost 1214.85 964.80 1724.67
Profit Before Tax 2735.13 1036.23
Tax Expenses 921.91 343.10
Profit After Tax 1813.22 693.13
Other
Comprehensive 41.15 8.57
Income
PAT after Other
Comprehensive 1854.37 701.70
Income
Earning Per Share
(inRs.) 24.04 9.19
(Basic & Diluted)

OPERATIONALPERFORMANCE

Your Company has performed strongly in the fiscal under review
registering its highest ever revenue and profit. The Company has
delivered robust performance despite escalating geo-political
tensions in Eastern Europe, a sharp increase in raw material and
commodity prices, persistent issues with container availability,
higherinflation, and mounting interest rates.

Your Company has reported a turnover of Rs 368.36 crores (an
increase of 41.61% year-on-year) and an EBITDA of Rs 48.03
crores (an increase of 73.95% vyear-on-year). The Company's
export for the fiscal under review stood at Rs 247.90 crores (71%
of the Company's turnover) against an export of Rs 143.24 crores
(58% of the Company's turnover) during the previous fiscal, an
increase of 73% year-on-year.

DIVIDEND

The Company has a robust track record of rewarding its

3-

shareholders with a generous dividend pay-out. In view of the
strong operational and financial performance during the year
under review, the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a
dividend of Rs. 2.50 per share (i.e. 25%) for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022 subject to the approval of shareholders
atthe ensuing Annual General Meeting. The total outflow towards
dividend including tax deducted at source (TDS) on Equity Shares
for the year would be Rs. 1.89 Crores.

As per the prevailing provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the
dividend, if declared, will be taxable in the hands of the
shareholders at the applicable rates. For details, shareholders are
requested to refer to the Notice of annual general meeting.

CAPACITY EXPANSION

During the financial year under review, the Company has
completed its ongoing expansion and modernisation project, and
has embarked on another expansion project with a total project
cost of approximately 100 crores. This new project will expand our
capacity by approximately 12,480 spindles, focus on the
modernisation and expansion of our dyeing facilities and add
machinery to help debottleneck certain production processes.
This expansion will allow the Company to take further advantage
of economies of scale thereby reducing operating costs, expand
our product offerings and improve profitability.

CHANGESIN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There were no changes in the nature of business during the year
under review as prescribed in Rule 8 (5) (ii) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. Your Company continues to remain in the
same business.

TRANSFERTO RESERVE

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of
profits for the financial year 2021-22 in the profit and loss account
and does not propose to transfer any amount to general reserves
of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2022, the authorised share capital of the
Company is Rs. 43,75,00,000 comprising of 1,35,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each and 30,25,000 preference shares of Rs.
100/- each, and the paid-up equity share capital as at March 31,
2022 is Rs. 7,54,35,630 comprising of 75,43,563 equity shares of
the facevalue of Rs. 10/- each.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company had neither
issued any shares nor instruments convertible into equity shares
of the Company or with differential voting rights nor has granted
any stock options or sweat equity.

LISTING AT STOCK EXCHANGES

As on the date of this report, the Company has its Equity Shares
listed on the following Stock Exchanges:
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BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd

The listing fees for the financial year under review have been paid
to the Stock Exchanges where the equity shares of the Company
arelisted.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES /AND ITS PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Company has no Subsidiaries/
Associate Companies/Joint ventures.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
FINANCIALPOSITION OF THE COMPANY

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company that have occurred between the
end of the financial year on March 31, 2022 to which the financial
statements relate and the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE
GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE

There were no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators, courts or tribunals which would impact the going
concern status of the company and also the Company's future
operations.

LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
investments or given any loans or guarantees or provided any
security in connection with a loan to any person or body
corporate, as defined under Section 186 of the Companies Act
2013.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH
RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the
Financial Year under review, were on an arm's length basis, in the
ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. There
were no materially significant related party transactions which
could have potential conflict with interest of the Company at
large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee for prior approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit
Committee is obtained for the transactions which are repetitive in
nature or when the need for these transactions cannot be
foreseeninadvance.

Details of transactions with Related Parties as required under
Section 134 (3) (h) of the Act read with Rule 8 (2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure - 1 in Form AOC - 2
and forms part of this Report.

The Company has adopted a policy for dealing with Related Party
Transactions. The Policy as approved by the Board is available at
the web link: http://reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-
conduct-and-policies/.

MEETINGS OF BOARD

The Board of Directors met four times during the year on June 21,
2021, August 10, 2021, November 10, 2021 and February 09,
2022. Frequency and quorum at these meetings and the
intervening gap between any two meetings were in conformity
with the provisions of the Act, the Listing Regulations and
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (“Secretarial Standards”) and the relaxations
provided by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and
Exchange Board of India from time to time in this regard. For
further details, please refer report on Corporate Governance
annexed to thisreport.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As on March 31, 2022, the Board of Directors has the following
committees:

Audit Committee

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Finance Committee

The details of committees along with their composition, number
of meetings, attendance at the meetings and other details are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report annexed to this
report.

CHANGE IN THE DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Rahul Shroff (DIN: 02301693)
and Mr. Ameya Shroff (DIN:05315616) Whole Time Director(s)
designated as the Executive Directors of the company were
liable to retire by rotation at the 43rd Annual General Meeting
and were re-appointed by the members.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Sanjiv Shroff (DIN: 00296008)
Executive Director, MD and Mrs. Dipika Shroff (DIN:
00226941) Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director of the
company are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible have offered themselves
for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommend their
re-appointments.
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KEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL

During the financial year, Mr. Chirag Gupta, Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer resigned w.e.f. January 31, 2022.

Mr. Utkarsh Gaur has been appointed as Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer w.e.f. May 25, 2022. Although, the said change
occurred after the closure of financial year, however, your
directors find it prudent to keep their shareholders informed
about the said change.

Except as above there were no other changes in the Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under
review.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 of the
Listing Regulations, all independent directors of the Company
have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of
Independence and also registered with the IICA databank of
independent directors. The Exemption certificate has been
received from all the independent directors for non-appearing in
the Exam conducted by I1CA.

The Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have
complied with the Company's code of conduct. In the opinion of
the Board of Directors, the independent directors fulfill the
conditions specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations and are
independent of the management.

Further, a familiarization program has been conducted for
Independent Directors and the details are uploaded on the
company website https://www.reliancechemotex.com/
reports/grievance-management/.

FORMALANNUALEVALUATION

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its
own performance, board committees, and individual directors
pursuantto the provisions of the Actand SEBI Listing Regulations.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the Board after
seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of criteria such as
the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board
after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of
criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of
committee meetings, etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on
Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India on January 5, 2017. In a separate meeting of independent
directors, performance of non-independent directors, the Board
as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking
into account the views of executive directors and non-executive
directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
reviewed the performance of individual directors on the basis of
criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the
board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to
be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and
inputsin meetings, etc.

At the board meeting that followed the meeting of the
independent directors and meeting of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its
Committees, and individual directors was also discussed.
Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by
the entire Board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated.

AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORTS
STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT

The appointment of Statutory Auditors of the company (M/s Jain
Pramod Jain & Co, Chartered Accountants) (Firm Registration No.:
016746N) was approved by the shareholders at the 39th Annual
General Meeting of the company for a term of five (5) years
commencing from April 1, 2017 to hold office from the conclusion
of the 39th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the
44th Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, M/s. Jain Pramod Jain
& Co will be completing their term of five (5) years at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The company is proposing to re-appoint M/s Jain Pramod Jain &
Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 016746N) as
Statutory Auditors for a further period of five (5) years
commencing from the conclusion of the 44th Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 49th Annual General Meeting
tobeheldintheyear2027.

M/s Jain Pramod Jain & Co have consented to the said
appointment and confirmed that their appointment, if made,
would be within the limits mentioned under Section 141 (3) (g) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014. Further, they have confirmed that they hold a valid
certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICALl).

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommend the
re-appointment of M/s. Jain Pramod Jain & Co as Statutory
Auditors of the company for a further period of five (5) years from
the conclusion of the 44thAnnual General Meeting until the
conclusion of the 49th Annual General Meeting to be held in the
year 2027.

The Statutory Auditors Report for FY 2021-22 on the financial
statement of the Company forms part of this Annual Report.
Auditors have expressed their unmodified opinion on the
Financial Statements and their reports do not contain any
qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimer. The
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information referred to in the Auditors Report is self-explanatory
and does not call for any further comments.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any
fraud as specified under Section 143 (12) of the Act, in the year
under review.

COSTAUDITORSAND COSTAUDITREPORT

M/s. N. N. & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.:
002322), New Delhi were appointed as Cost Auditors of the
Company for conducting the Cost Audit for the financial year
2021-22. The Cost audit report for the financial year 2021-22 do
not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or
disclaimer. The information referred to in the Auditors Report is
self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended from time to time, the Board of Directors of the
company has, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
approved the re-appointment of M/s. N. N. & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No.002322), New Delhi as the Cost
Auditors, to conduct the Cost Audit for the financial year 2022-23.
Aresolution seeking approval of the Shareholders for ratifying the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2022-23 is
providedin the Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Costaccounts and records as required to be maintained under
section 148 (1) of the Act are duly made and maintained by the
Company.

During the financial year 2021-22, no fraud was reported by the
Cost Auditors of the Company in their Audit Report.

SECRETARIALAUDITORS AND SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

M/s. V. M. & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration
No.: P1984RJ039200), Jaipur were appointed as Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for conducting the Secretarial Audit for
the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year 2021-22, in form MR-3, does not contain any
qualification, reservation or adverse remark and is annexed to this
reportas Annexure-2.

Further, the Board of Directors has approved the re-appointment
of M/s. V. M. & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm
Registration No.: P1984RJ039200) as Secretarial Auditors at their
meeting held on May 25, 2022 for conducting the Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-23.

During the financial year 2021-22, no fraud was reported by the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company in their Audit Report.

INTERNALAUDITORSAND INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

M/s. Rajeev Amitabh & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No.: 009942N) were re-appointed as Internal
Auditors of the Company for conducting Internal Audit for the

financial year 2021-22. The Internal Audit Reports were received
by the Company and the same were reviewed by the Audit
Committee and taken note of by the Board of Directors of the
company.

The Internal audit report for the financial year 2021-22 do not
contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or
disclaimer. The information referred to in the Auditors Report is
self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments.

Further, the Board of Directors has approved the re-appointment
of M/s. Rajeev Amitabh & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No.: 009942N) as Internal Auditors at their meeting
held on May 25, 2022 for conducting the Internal Audit of the
Company for the financial year 2022-23.

During the financial year 2021-22, no fraud was reported by the
Internal Auditors of the Company in their Audit Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral
and legal business conduct. Accordingly, the Board of Directors has
formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the
provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Act and Listing Regulations. The
policy provides a framework and process whereby concerns can be
raised by its employees against any kind of discrimination,
harassment, victimization or any other unfair practice being
adopted against them, and can also report directly to the Chairman
of Audit Committee. The policy focuses on promoting ethical
behavior in all its business activities and encourages employees to
report concerns and unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud
orviolation of the company's code of conduct and ethics. Under the
said mechanism, employees are free to report violations of
applicable laws and regulations and the Code of Conduct. It also
provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of
persons who use this mechanism. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Blower Policy has been posted on the Company's website at
https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-
and-policies/. The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed
by the Audit Committee from time to time. The Company affirms
that no director/employee have been denied access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and that no compliant was
received during the year.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has a Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility and
the same has been posted on the website of the Company at
https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-
and-policies/.

Asrequired under Section 134 (3) (o) and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Annual
Report on CSR activities, is annexed as Annexure 3, which forms
part of this Report.
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RISKMANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has adopted the measures concerning the
development and implementation of a Risk Management System
in terms of Section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 after
identifying the elements of risks which in the opinion of the Board
may threaten the very existence of the Company itself. The
Company has an elaborate Risk Management process of
identification, assessment and prioritization of risk followed by
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the
probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize
therealization of opportunities.

The Risk Management procedure is reviewed by the Board from
time to time, to ensure that the executive management controls
risks through means of a properly defined framework. Major risks
identified are systematically addressed through mitigating actions
ona continuing basis.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company has always believed in providing a safe and
harassment-free workplace for every individual through various
interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to
create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment, including sexual harassment.

The Company hasin place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line
with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up in
compliance of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under
this policy.

Following are the details of sexual harassment cases for the
financial year2021-22.

S.No.| No. of complaints No. of No. of
received during complaints Complaints
the financial year disposed off pending as at

the end of the
financial year
1 NIL NIL NIL

during the Year

ANNUALRETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) read with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act,
the Annual Return as on March 31, 2022 is available on the
Company's website http://www.reliancechemotex.
com/reports/financial-reports/.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year 2021-22, your Company has not invited,
accepted or renewed any deposits within the meaning of Section
73, 74 and 76 of the Act read together with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The Borrowings taken from the Directors have been stated in the
financial statements note no.18.

INTERNAL FINANCIALCONTROLSYSTEM

For a detailed discussion with reference to the adequacy of
internal financial controls, please refer to Management
Discussion and Analysis Report annexed to this report as
Annexure-4.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology
absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo as required
under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is marked as
Annexure 5 to thisreport.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has framed the policy on Nomination &
Remuneration which lays down the framework in relation to the
selection, appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key
Managerial Person and Senior Management of the Company. The
Nomination & Remuneration Policy has been posted on the
Company's website https://www.reliancechemotex.com/
reports/code-of-conduct-and-policies/ and the salient features of
the policy form a part of the Annual report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & THEIR DISCLOSURES

Disclosures pursuant to Section 197 (12) of the Act, read with Rule
5 (1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as
Annexure 6.

Further, disclosures pursuant to Rule 5 (2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure 7.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial
year 2021-22, as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is
annexed to thisreport as Annexure -4.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance
requirements under the provisions of the Act and the Listing
Regulations. Report on Corporate Governance for the financial
year 2021-22 is annexed to this report as Annexure -8
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DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The IND AS are prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Accounting
Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hithertoin use.

SECRETARIALSTANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Companies
Secretaries of India and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, confirm that:

In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there are no material
departures;

They have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year
and of the profit of the Company for that period;

They have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
otherirregularities;

They have prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year
ended March 31,2022 on a going concern basis;

They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed
by the Company and such Internal Financial Controls are
adequate and operating effectively;

They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING
PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016

No application has been made under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code; hence the requirement to disclose the details of
application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the

year along with their status as at the end of the financial year is not
applicable.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

Other disclosures with respect to Board's Report as required
under the ACT and the Rules notified thereunder and listing
regulations and other SEBI regulations are either NIL OR NOT
APPLICABLE.

CAUTION STATEMENT

Statements in the Board's Report and the Management
Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives,
expectations or predictions may be forward-looking within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual
results may differ materially from those expressed in the
statement. Crucial factors that could influence the Company's
operations include global and domestic demand and supply
conditions affecting selling prices, new capacity additions,
availability of critical materials and their cost, changes in
government policies and tax laws, economic development of the
country and other factors that are material to the business
operations of the Company.

APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation to every
member of Reliance family for their hard work, dedication and
commitment, to whom the credit for the Company's
achievements goes, particularly during this unprecedented year.
Your Directors would also like to acknowledge the valuable
contribution by the Company's Promoter in the continuous
improvementin our Business Practices.

Your Company looks upon its suppliers, distributors, retailers,
business partners and others associated with it in its progress and
the Board places on record its appreciation for the support and co-
operation from all of them. The Directors take this opportunity to
express their deep sense of gratitude to the Banks, Government
and Regulatory authorities, both at Central and State level for
their continued guidance and support.

And to you, our shareholders, we are deeply grateful for the
confidence and faith that you have always reposedin us.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Rahul Shroff
Whole Time Director
DIN: 02301693

Sanjiv Shroff
Managing Director
DIN: 00296008

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 11, 2022

Registered Office: Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
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Annexure: 1

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section
(1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certainarm's length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS ORTRANSACTIONS NOT AT ARM'SLENGTH BASIS: NIL

Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Justification for Date(s) of Amount paid as Date on which the
the related contracts/ the contracts or entering into such approval by advances, if any special resolution was
party and arrangements Contracts/ arrangements or contracts or the Board passed in general
nature of / transactions arrangemen transactions arrangements or meeting as required
relationship ts/ including the value, transactions under first proviso to
transactions if any section 188

2. DETAILS OF MATERIALCONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS AT ARM'S LENGTH BASIS:

Name(s) of Related Party and Nature of Contracts/ Duration of Salient terms of the Contracts or Date(s) of Amount
nature of relationship arrangements/ Contracts/ arrangements or transactions including Approval Paid as
Transactions arrangements the value, if any by the Advance, if
/ Transactions Board if any
any
AR Commercial Private Ltd Leave and 5 Years Interest free Deposit of Rs.1,25,00,000 | 21-06-21 -
(Promoter Group) License Agreement and Rent of Rs. 1,57,500/- to be paid with
increase on 5% annual rent on mutual
discussion.
Indo Textiles & Fibres Ltd Leave and 5 Years Interest free Deposit of Rs.1.25Cr. and | 10-08-21 -
(Other related party) License Agreement Rent of Rs. 2,36,250/ - to be paid with
increase on 5% annual rent on mutual
discussion.
Indo Textiles & Fibres Ltd Leave and 5 Years Interest free Deposit of Rs. 25,00,000 and | 10-08-21 -
(Other related party) License Agreement Rent of Rs. 1,57,500/ - to be paid with
increase on 5% annual rent on mutual
discussion.
AS Chemotex Pvt. Ltd. Leave and 5 Years Interest free Deposit of Rs.25,00,000 and | 10-08-21 -
(Promoter Group) License Agreement Rent of Rs. 1,57,500/ - to be paid with
increase on 5% annual rent on mutual
discussion.
Spell Fashions Pvt. Ltd Leave and 5 Years Interest free Deposit of Rs. 51,000 and 21-06-21 -
(Other related party) License Agreement Rent of Rs. 30,000/ - to be paid with
increase on 5% annual rent on mutual
discussion.
For and on behalf of the Board of Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.
Place: Mumbai Sanjiv Shroff Rahul Shroff
Date: August 11,2022 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00296008 DIN:02301693

Registered Office: Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
CIN:L40102RJ1977PLC0O01994

Tel: +91(0) 294 2491489 ; +91 (0) 294 2491490 | Fax:+91(0) 294 2490067
E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com | Website: www.reliancechemotex.com
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Annexure: 2

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited
Village Kanpur

Udaipur—313003 (Rajasthan)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications
given to us and the representations made by the Management
and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India
warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the Financial year ended on March 31, 2022
('Audit Period') complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for

the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the

provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and
the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws
framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and

-10-

regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI
Act'):-

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(8)

(h)

(k)

()

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue Of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
(Notapplicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (repealed w.e.f.
13th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021
(notified on 13th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (repealed
w.e.f. 9th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021
(notified on 9th August, 2021) (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to
an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (repealed w.e.f. 10th
June, 2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (notified on 10th June,
2021) (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.
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(vi) As confirmed by the management, there are no sector
specificlaws that are applicable specifically to the company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of
the following:

i.  Secretarial Standardsissued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India;

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company
with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We furtherreport that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changesin the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting
members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes
in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has
made an application to National Stock Exchange of India Ltd for
listing of its equity shares.

For V.M. & Associates

Company Secretaries

(1CSI Unique Code P1984RJ039200)
PR 581 /2019

Place: Jaipur
Date: May 25, 2022
UDIN: FO09985D000381466

CS Vikas Mehta

Partner

Membership No.: FCS 9985
CP No.: 12789

Note: This reportis to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure A

To,

The Members,

Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited

Village Kanpur

Udaipur—313003 (Rajasthan)

Our report of even dateis to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the
management of the company. Our responsibility is to express
anopinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.  We have followed the audit practices and processes as were
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of
financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management
representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

For V.M. & Associates

Company Secretaries

(I1CSI Unique Code P1984RJ039200)
PR 581 /2019

Place: Jaipur
Date: May 25, 2022
UDIN: F0O09985D000381466

CS Vikas Mehta

Partner

Membership No.: FCS 9985
CP No.: 12789

-11-
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Annexure: 3
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]
1. BRIEFOUTLINEON CSRPOLICY OF THE COMPANY: Composition of the CSR Committee on -http://www.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the company is
intended to ensure that the CSR programs of the Company
reflect its values and is aligned with the applicable regulatory
requirements. The Company believes in taking an active role
and responsibility in transforming the lives of rural people by
improving their socio-economic conditions directly or
indirectly. The efforts of the Company will not only impact the
development of the direct beneficiaries, but also attempt to
enhance the education levels among the underprivileged
people. Education and skill development, clean water and
sanitation in schools for underprivileged children, rural
developments, good health, eradication of poverty, hunger,
rehabilitation, and other are key pillars of our Corporate
Social Responsibility policy which always motivates us of
giving back to society.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSRCOMMITTEE:

reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-and-
policies/

CSR Policy on -http://www.reliancechemotex.com/
reports/code-of-conduct-and-policies/

CSR Projects on-http://www.reliancechemotex.
com/reports/code-of-conduct-and-policies/

DETAILS OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT OF CSR PROJECTS
CARRIED OUT IN PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE
8 OF THE COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY POLICY) RULES, 2014, IF APPLICABLE:
NOTAPPLICABLE

DETAILS OF THE AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR SET OFF IN
PURSUANCE OF SUB-RULE (3) OF RULE 7 OF THE
COMPANIES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
POLICY) RULES, 2014 AND AMOUNT REQUIRED FOR SET
OFFFORTHE FINANCIALYEAR, IFANY:

Sr. Name of Designation/Nature | Number of | Number of
No. | Director of Directorship meetings meetings Sr. Financial Amount available Amount required
of CSR of CSR No. Year for set-off from to be set off for the
Committee | Committee preceding Financial Financial Year, if
held attended Year (In Rs.) any (in Rs.)
during the during the 1. 2020-21 2843/_ 2843/_
year year
L 'gl/',“ Ram fhda"ma;" : 1 1 6. AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER
as naepenaen
S;Vavrma Direc”tor SECTION 135 (5): Rs. 9,55,81,982/-
5> | Mr.Rahul | Member- Executive | 1 1 7. a. Two percent of Average Net Profit of the company as per
Shroff Director section135(5):Rs. 19,11,640/-
3. | Mr Member- 1 1 b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
Ea_nqadoss :)n,derlendent activities of the previous financial years: NIL
rinivasan Irector

c.  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if
any:Rs. 2843/-

3. WEB LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE,

CSR POLICY AND CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs.
BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE WEBSITE OF THE 19,08,797/-
COMPANY:

8. (a)CSRAMOUNTSPENTORUNSPENTFORTHE FINANCIALYEAR:

Total Amount Spent for the
Financial Year (Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Transferred to Unspent CSR
Account as per Section 135 (6)

Amount Transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII
as per second proviso to Section 135 (5)

Amount

Date of Transfer

Name of the Fund

Amount

Date of Transfer

19,76,452

-12-
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(b) DETAILS OF CSRAMOUNTSPENT AGAINSTONGOING PROJECTS FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR:

(1 | @ 3) (4) (5) (6) 7 (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sr. Name of Item from the Local Location of the Project | Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No the Project list of area project duration | allocated spentin transferred Implement Implementation
activities in (Yes/No) for the the current | to Unspent ation - - Through
Schedule VII project (in financial CSR Account | Direct Implementing
to the Act Rs.). Year (inRs.) | forthe (Yes/No) Agency
project as
per Section
State | District 135(6) (in
Rs.)
Name | CSR
Registr
ation
Number
(c) DETAILSOFCSRAMOUNTSPENTAGAINSTOTHERTHAN ONGOING PROJECTS FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR:
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr. Name of the Project Item from Local Location of the project Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the list of area spent for the implement implementation -
activities in (Yes/ State District project at.'|on - Through .
Schedule No) (in Rs.) Direct implementing
VIl to the (Yes/No) agency
Act Name CSR
Registra
tion
Number
1. Installation of Tree guards for (iv) Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 40,000 Yes - -
plantation purpose in Nearby
areas of Udaipur (Raj.)
2. Construction of boundary wall & (ii) & (x) Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 3,84,920 Yes - -
Chiana Mozake Work at
government school Baeyo Ki
Pacholi
3. Construction of fixing of (ii) & (x) Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 2,37,272 Yes - -
interlocking tiles and repairing of
stage in Sr.
Secondary School, Purohiton Ki
Madri, Udaipur
4, Construction of School building at (ii) & (x) Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 12,31,000 Yes - -
Sr. Secondary School,
Village Kanpur
5. Installation of Sanitary Napkin (i) Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 73,160 Yes - -
Vending Machines for Schools,
Colleges in Nearby Areas of
Udaipur (Raj.)
6. Distribution of Sanitary Napkins in (i) Yes Rajasthan Udaipur 10,100 Yes - -
Schools, Colleges in Nearby Areas
of Udaipur (Raj.)
Total - - - - 19,76,452 - - -

-13-
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(d) AMOUNTSPENTINADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEADS: NIL

(e) AMOUNTSPENTON IMPACT ASSESSMENT, IF APPLICABLE: NOT APPLICABLE
(f) TOTALAMOUNTSPENTFORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR (8b+8c+8d+8e):Rs. 19,76,452/-
(g) EXCESSAMOUNTFORSET OFF, IFANY

Sr. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

No.

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 19,08,797/-

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 19,76,452/-

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 67,655

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii) -(iv)] 67,655

9. (a) DETAILSOFUNSPENTCSRAMOUNTFORTHEPRECEDING THREE FINANCIALYEARS:

Sr. Preceding Amount transferred Amount spent in the | Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount

No. Financial Year to Unspent CSR reporting Financial under Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if remaining to be
Account under Year (in Rs.) any spentin
section 135 (6) succeeding
(in Rs.) Name of Amount Date of En:;nual years. (in

the fund (inRs.) Transfer s

(b) DETAILSOFCSRAMOUNTSPENTINTHEFINANCIALYEARFORONGOING PROJECTS OF THEPRECEDING FINANCIALYEAR(S):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sr.No. Project ID | Name of the Financial Year in Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
Project which the project | Duration amount spent on the amount spent at project -
was commenced allocated for | projectinthe | theend of Completed
the project reporting reporting /Ongoing.
(in Rs.). Financial Year | Financial Year.
(in Rs). (inRs.)

10. IN CASE OF CREATION OR ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSET, FURNISH THE DETAILS RELATING TO THE ASSET SO CREATED
ORACQUIRED THROUGH CSRSPENTINTHE FINANCIALYEAR

(asset-wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NIL

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.NIL

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. NIL
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): NIL

11. SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER CENT OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER
SECTION 135(5): NOT APPLICABLE

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Sanjiv Shroff
Managing Director
DIN:00296008
Place: Mumbai
Registered Office: Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
CIN:L40102RJ1977PLC0O01994

Tel: +91(0) 294 2491489 ;+91 (0) 294 2491490 | Fax:+91(0) 294 2490067

E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com | Website: www.reliancechemotex.com
-14-

Ram Niwas Sharma
Chairman, CSR Committee
DIN:00368947

Place: Gurgaon

Date: August11,2022
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Annexure: 4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERVIEW & OUTLOOK

COVID-19 has led to a great deal of turbulence and uncertainty for economies around the world. Global Economic activity which had
begun to recover on the back of supportive fiscal and monetary policy, strong vaccination efforts and reduced COVID-19 infections now
faces renewed headwinds from escalating geo-political tensions in Eastern Europe, a sharp increase in global commodity prices, logistical
challenges, mounting interest rates and sky-rocketing inflation. Global growth is projected to slow down from an estimated 6.1% in 2021
1t03.6%in 2022 and 2023. [Source: IMF]

THEINDIAN TEXTILEINDUSTRY AND OUTLOOK

India is one of the world's leading manufacturers of textiles and the 6th largest exporter of textiles and apparels in the world [Source:
Ministry of Textiles Annual Report 21-22].

The Textile Industry in India has several distinct advantages: abundant availability of raw materials, availability of skilled manpower at a
competitive rate, and a flourishing and diverse domestic market that is being aided by rapid urbanization and increasing per capita
income.

Furthermore, the Indian Textile Industry has manufacturing strength across the value chain — right from fibre manufacturing to the
production of garments — which allows for robust synergies that lead to cost efficiencies across the value chain. Unfortunately, however,
the highly fragmented nature of the industry does not allow the industry to exploit the benefits of this established manufacturing value
chainto the extent thatis possible in competing countries.

OPPORTUNITIES

The Corona Virus pandemic has led to severe disruptions throughout the textile value chain, however, this pandemic also presented the
industry with an opportunity to become a viable sourcing alternative to China as customers around the world look to diversify and reduce
their dependence on China. The Government's renewed focus on “Make in India”, the “Atma Nirbhar Bharat (or Self-Reliant India)”
campaign and the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme for the Textile Sector with a focus on Man-Made Fibre (MMF) and Technical
Textiles, all promise to provide impetus to the industry in its effort to further strengthen its value chain and emerge as a top sourcing
destination for customers around the world.

Furthermore, the recently announced Free Trade Agreements (FTA) with Australia and UAE will be extremely advantageous for Indian
Textile Exporters, who have been at a disadvantage to competing, neighbouring countries that enjoy lower duties on their exports to the
majorimporting countries around the world.

Finally, your Company's continued focus on exports and its established, long-term relationships with customers around the globe will be
advantageous as the world pivots to the “China +1” sourcing strategy and as the FTA agreements come into effect. Additionally, your
Company's strategic foray into textiles also promises to bear fruitin the near future.

THREATS, RISKS AND CONCERNS

Geo-political tensions, escalating commodity prices, increasing inflation, higher interest rates, currency volatility, raw material
fluctuations and increased competition from countries like Vietnam and Bangladesh may have some impact on the industry in the near
term.

Furthermore, The Textile Industry is extremely labour intensive. The availability of labour continues to be challenging for the industry,
across the value chain. Furthermore, rigid labour laws and increasing wages are also a hindrance.

Finally, the cost of power is another vital component and accounts for 15%-20% of the overall production cost in textile spinning. Higher
Industrial Power Tariff Rates in your company's geography of operation is an area that needs to be addressed. In an effort to insulate the
Company from fluctuations in the aforementioned Industrial Power Tariff Rates, reduce the Company's carbon footprint and reduce
overall operational costs, the Company has begun to install Solar Panels on the rooftops of our manufacturing units in Udaipur. The first
3.4 MW of solar capacity has been successfully commissioned and is operating satisfactorily. We endeavour to strategically scale this
capacityupto5MW.

SEGMENT-WISE AND PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company's primary business segment is Yarn, hence there is no other segment-wise information provided. The Company has no
activity outside India except the Export of the Yarn manufacturedin India.

-15-
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(Rs. in Lakh)
Revenue from Operations 2021-22 2020-21
Export 24,790.85 14,324.65
Domestic 9,951.92 10,559.32
Total 34,742.77 24,883.97

INTERNALCONTROLSYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company has putin place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its size and nature of business to safeguard and
protect from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and
reporting financial statements. The internal auditor of the Company checks and verifies the internal control system and monitors them in
accordance with the policy adopted by the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditor and Department
Heads are appraised of the internal audit finding and corrective action is taken thereon. The audit observations and the management's
responses are placed before the Audit Committee. We believe that our internal financial control system provides reasonable assurance
thatourinternal financial control is designed effectively and is operating as intended.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIALPERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONALPERFORMANCE

The operational performance of the company has been highlighted in the Director's Report which is anintegral part of the Annual Report.
HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company recognizes the importance of its employees as a key asset instrumental to its growth. The Company believes in the
acquisition, retention and betterment of talented team players. With the philosophy of inclusive growth, the Company has further
redefined its performance management system. The system focuses on the progression of individual employees while emphasising the
importance of organisational goals. Under the new system, there is an increased thrust on job rotation and multi- skilling. The Company's
Human Resource Department is committed to positively developing employees with an emphasis on productivity, quality and customer
satisfaction. In order to maintain a skilled workforce, the company regularly provides in-house training to its employees and also deputes
them to machinery manufacturers and training institutes for specific training as and when the need arises.

The Company has a well-developed management information system which provides the required information to the all levels of
management. Such reports are routinely analysed and effective steps are taken to control the product quality, efficiency, utilisation and
productivity in company.

The strength of the company's workforce at the end of financial year was 1565. This includes both skilled and unskilled manpower.

KEY FINANCIALRATIO AND DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Particulars Financial Year Change in % Reason (If more than 25% Change)
31.03.2022 | 31.03.2021
Debtor Turnover Ratio (no. of days) 5.71 15.58 63.4 Debtors are given cash discounts to reduce the
number of days outstanding.

Inventory Turnover Ratio (no. of days) | 47.86 59.94 20.15 -

Interest coverage Ratio (DSCR) 1.95 1.30 50 Due to an increase in sales and profits.
Current Ratio 0.96 1.03 6.8 -

Debt / Equity Ratio 1.03 0.93 10.75 -

Operating Profit margin (%) 4.51% 1.01% 346 Due to an increase in sales and profits.
Net Profit Margin (%) 5.22% 2.79% 87 Due to an increase in sales and profits.
Return on Net Worth 14.93% 6.64% 125 Due to an increase in sales and profits.
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Annexure: 5

A.
.

DETAILS ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
(Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
STEPSTAKEN ORIMPACT ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
In line with the Company's commitment towards conservation of energy, the company continues with its efforts aimed at improving
energy efficiency through innovative measures to reduce wastage and optimize consumption. Some of the measures taken by the
company in this direction are asunder:
Installation of Compressed air monitoring system in Autoconer
b. Compressed air leakage arrestin Autoconers
c. Installation of Inverter Drive for new WCS System —Unit 1A Section
d. Installation of Inverter drives for Humidification plant SA fans—Unit 2
e. Optimization of Autoconer suction motor frequency
These measures have also led to reduced impact on environment, reduced maintenance time and cost, and improved productivity.
THESTEPS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY FOR UTILIZING ALTERNATE SOURCES OF ENERGY
a. InBoiler, “Biomass” is being used instead of Petcoke / Coal.
b. Installation of 2059 kwp Roof top Solar systems.
THE CAPITALINVESTMENT ON ENERGY CONSERVATION EQUIPMENTS:
Rs.16,05,485.13
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
I. EFFORTS MADETOWARDS TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Developed multifold knotless yarn for heavy duty application and continuous efforts are going on for industrial sector for PPS,
Polypropylene, Nylon, Meta-aramid and Para-aramid Yarn. Also introduced low melt and low pill yarns for specific uses and
developed Poly/Linen, Viscose, & Cationic Dye able Product, slub yarn and space dyed yarn.

We have modernize our A & Bsectioni.e. 16416 spindles by taking out old technology machine by replacing new latest machines
from Blow room to ring frame and autoconer with complete latest technology machines having Auto doffing in Ring frame and
also continuous line processis therein blow room line.
Il. BENEFITDERIVED ASARESULT OF THE ABOVE R&D
New businessin Home Textiles and high end fabric category as well as Customer base is widened.
Il. IN CASE OF IMPORTED TECHNOLOGY (IMPORTED DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS RECKONED FROM THE BEGINNING
OFTHE FINANCIALYEAR)
The details of technology imported: The Company has notimported any technology during the last three financial years.
Theyear ofimport: Not applicable
Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not applicable
If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,and the reason thereof: Not applicable.
We have purchased latest Japanese Autoconer machine Qpro Plus having salient features of upper yarn sensors for even
formation of packages.
Additional suction arm setting for better quality of winding of yarn.
We have also purchased latest technology of Uster Quantum 4 ( EYC ) having better evaluation of online yarn faults
classifications and additional setting i.e SWARM setting in which we can cut the specific defect yarn zone without affecting the
yarn body.
IV. EXPENDITURE ONR&D
Capital: NIL
Recurring: R &D expenses cannot be segregated.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

o 0o T o

(Rs.in Lakh)
1. Foreign Exchange Earnings: 22484.76
2. Foreign Exchange Outgo: 850.30
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Annexure: 6

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

(Information relating to remuneration of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

S.No. | Particulars Disclosure
1. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median Name of Director Ratio
remuneration of the employees of the company for the FY 2021-22 Mr. Sanjiv Shroff 78.13
Mr. Rahul Shroff 73.63
Mr. Ameya Shroff 71.95
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Mr. Sanjiv Shroff, -
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Managing Director

manager if any, in the FY 2021-22
Mr. Rahul Shroff, -

Executive Director

Mr. Ameya Shroff, -
Executive Director

Mr. Chandrasekaran -
Rajagopalan, Chief Financial
Officer

Mr. Chirag Gupta, NA

Company Secretary (Resigned
w.e.f. 31.01.2022)

3. The percentage increase in the Median Remuneration of NIL
employees in the financial year

The change in median is due to change in
employees as compared to previous years.

4, The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company 1565
as on March 31, 2022

5. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of | NIL.

employees other than managing personnel in the last financial year | The same is due to COVID- 19 impact.
and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial

remuneration
6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per
policy of the company the remuneration policy of the company

-18-



N

- RELIANCE

CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

Annexure: 7

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5 (2) OF THE COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Sl. No. [Employee Name Designation Remuneration [Qualification Total Joining Date Age Last
received Experience (in years) Employment
1. Mr. Sanjiv Shroff Managing 2,68,95,000 Science 33 Years 01.09.88 62 Years -
Director Graduate
2. Mr. Rahul Shroff Executive 2,59,01,000 Master in 11 Years -
Director Engineering in 28.07.08 35 Years
Electrical and
Computer
Science
3. Mr. Ameya Shroff Executive 2,47,20,000 Master in 09 Years 29.06.13 32 Years -
Director Engineering in
Electrical and
Computer
Science
4, Mr. Chandrasekaran Chief Financial |55,55,204 Chartered 39 years 11.11.19 61 Years 1G
Rajagopalan Officer Accountant & Petrochemicals
Company Ltd.
Sectary
5. Mr. Vinay Srivastava President 55,96,300 Diploma in 23 Years 01.05.20 45 Years Trident Ltd.
Textile
Technology
6. Mr. Sarvesh Kumar GM (Marketing) (13,27,400 B. Tech 17 Years 04.11.19 39 Years Winsome Yarn
(resigned w.e.f. Ltd.
30.09.21)
7. Mr. Madan Gopal Rathi |Finance Manager|19,83,000 Post Graduate 50 Years 29.06.13 72 Years -
and Coordinator in Commerce
8. Mr. S.S Saxsena Vice President 27,54,880 Master of 38 Years 26.05.14 62 Years Birla Textile
(resigned w.e.f. Personal Social Works Mills Ltd.
30.11.21)
9. Mr. Anil Mujumdar Vice President 16,67,760 Diploma in 39 Years 30.09.15 59 Years |[Gimatex
Engineering Electrical Industries Ltd.
10. |Mr. V. K. Joshi Vice President R [16,06,947 M. Tech 28 Years 01.07.13 60 Years |Bharat
&D Commercial
Industries Ltd.
11. |Mr. Pankaj Kothari GM (Finance) 19,48,309 Chartered 29 Years 15.01.21 47 Years |Videocon
Accountant & Industries Ltd.
B. Com.
12. |Mr. H.S. Lamba DGM (Costing & [19,37,782 Diploma in 32 Years 07.05.16 54 Years |[Spentex
MIS-PPC) Business Industries Ltd.
Management

Note: The remuneration above does not include provision/payment towards incremental liability on account of gratuity and compensated absences since actuarial
valuationis done for the company asawhole.
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Annexure: 8

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
('Listing Regulations') and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance, the following report on
governance lays down the ethos of RELIANCE CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LTD. (“RCIL” or “the Company”) and its commitment to
conduct businessin accordance with sound Corporate Governance practices.

COMPANY'SPHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations and Companies Act, 2013 ('Act'), the report contains the details of Corporate
Governance system and process at the Company. We believe in adopting the well accepted Corporate Governance practices, benchmark
the same tothe best governed companies and strive to improve them continuously.

Our Corporate Governance is a reflection of our value system encompassing our culture, policies and relationships with our stakeholders.
Integrity and transparency are key to our Corporate Governance practices and performance and we ensure that we gain and retain the
trust of stakeholders at all times. Our guiding principles and practices are summarized in this Corporate Governance Report. The Board of
Directors of the Company ('‘Board') is at the core of our Corporate Governance practices and oversees how the management serves and
protects the long term interests of our stakeholders. Our Corporate Governance framework ensures that the Company makes timely
disclosures and share accurate information regarding our financials, performance and other material events.
Our Corporate Governance philosophy and practices are based on the following principles:

e Appropriate Composition of Board of Directors where every member is having expertise in their domain.

e Availability of information to the members of Board and Committees enabling them to discharge their fiduciary duties.

* Timelydisclosure of material, operational, and financial information to the stakeholders.

e Properbusiness conducted by the Board and Senior Management.

e Systemand processes arein place forinternal control.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), as applicable, with regard to Corporate Governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
a) COMPOSITION OF THEBOARD

The Board is broad-based and consists of eminent personalities from Industrial, Managerial, Technical, Financial and Marketing
backgrounds. The Company is managed by the Board of Directors in co-ordination with the Senior Management Team. The
composition and strength of the Board is reviewed from time to time for ensuring that it remains aligned with statutory as well as
business requirements. The Company has a Judicious Combination of Executive and Non- Executive Directors. As on March 31, 2022,
the Board comprised of 8 Directors out of which three are Executive Directors, three are Independent Directors and two are
Non-Executive Directors of which one is Woman Director. The Chairman of the Board is an Independent Director of the Company. The
composition of Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations and the
Act.

b) NUMBEROFBOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year 2021-2022, the Board met 4 timesi.e. onJune 21,2021, August 10, 2021, November 10, 2021 and February
09,2022.

The attendance at the Board Meetings during the previous year, previous Annual General Meeting and other details such as
Directorship in other Indian companies etc. are as follows:
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Name of Director & DIN Category of No. of Board Last No. of Directorship and Committee Relationship Equity
Directors Meeting AGM Member ship/ Chairmanship Director Inter-se Shares
Attended Attended held
Directorship | Committee Committee
Membership 2| Chairmanship ?
Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan Independent - -
(Chairman) Director 4 No 1 1 -
DIN: 00235831
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff Promoter/ Related to :
DIN: 00296008 Managing 4 Yes 6 1 - Mr. S.L. Shroff, 145800
Director
Mr. Rahul Shroff,
Mr. Ameya Shroff,
Mrs. Dipika Shroff
Mr. Nand Gopal Khaitan Promoter/ -
DIN: 00020588 Non-Executive 4 Yes 10 6 3 100
Director
Mr. Narayan Shroff Independent 3 No 2 1 1 - 50
DIN: 05207412 Director
Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma Independent 4 Yes 3 1 1 - 50
DIN: 00368947 Director
Mr. Rahul Shroff Promoter/ 4 Yes 6 Related to:
DIN: 02301693 Executive - - M. S.L. Shroff, -
Director
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff,
Mr. Ameya Shroff,
Mrs. Dipika Shroff
Mr. Ameya Shroff Promoter/ 4 Yes 3 Related to: 124000
DIN:05315616 Executive - - Mr. S.L. Shroff,
Director
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff,
Mr. Rahul Shroff,
Mrs. Dipika Shroff
Mrs. Dipika Shroff Promoter 4 No 3 Related to: 231150
DIN: 00226941 Group/ . . M. S.L Shroff,
N.t)n—Executlve Mr. Sanjiv Shroff,
Director
Mr. Rahul Shroff,
Mr. Ameya Shroff

1. The directorship, held by Directors, as above includes the directorship of Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd. and other public and
private companies.

2. Committees considered for the purpose are those prescribed under the Listing Regulation viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders'
Relationship Committee of other Indian Public/Private Companies Including Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Details of name of other listed entities where Directors of the Company are Directors and the category of Directorship as on March 31,

2022 areasunder:
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Name of Director Name of other Listed entites in which the Category
concerned Director is Director

Mr. Nand Gopal Khaitan HSIL Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director
India Power Corporation Limited Independent Director
Mangalam Cement Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director
JK Lakshmi Cement Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director
Somany Home Innovation Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director

Except Mr. Nand Gopal Khaitan, none of the other Directors hold any directorship in any other listed entity.

c) MEETING OFINDEPENDENTDIRECTORS
The Independent Directors meet separately at least once in a year, without the presence of Non-Independent Directors or
representatives of the management. They meet to discuss and form an independent opinion on the various agenda items during
the year and various other related matters, identify areas where they need clarity or information from the Management, annually
review the performance of Non- Independent Directors, the Board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company, taking into
account the views of Executive Directors and Non- Executive Directors and assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information between the Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties. During the financial year 2021-22, the Independent Directors met on June 21, 2021. Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan, Mr. Narayan
Shroff and Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma, Independent Directors of the Company were present in the meeting.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Independent Directors fulfills the conditions of Independence as specified in Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of

Listing Regulations. Format of Letter of Appointment of Independent Directors is uploaded on the website of the company at

http://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/miscellaneous-reports/.

Further, at the time of appointment and thereafter at the beginning of each financial year, the Independent Directors submit a self-

declaration, confirming their independence and compliance with various eligibility criteria laid down by the Company, among other

disclosures and the Company also ensures that its Directors meet the above eligibility criteria. All such declarations are placed before

the Board for information. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions

specifiedin the Listing Regulations and the Act and are independent of the management.

During the year underreview, no Independent Directors has resigned from the directorship of company.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR BOARD MEMBERS

In compliance with the requirements of the Act and the listing regulations, the Company has put in place the familiarization programme

for the independent directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibilities along with the working of the company,

nature of the industry in which the company operates, etc. The details of the familiarization programme imparted to the independent

directors are posted on the website of the company and can be accessed at http://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/grievance-

management/.

SKILLS /EXPERTISE COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following is the list of core skills/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of the Company's

business and that the said skills are available within the Board Members:

e Governance skills (that s, skills directly relevant to performing the Board's key functions);

e Industryskills (thatis, skills relevant to the industry or section in which the organization pre dominantly operates);

e Personal attributes or qualities that are generally considered desirable to be an effective Director;

e Technical skills/experience in accounting/ finance/ Government or public policy/ economy/ human resource management/

strategy development and implementation/ Capital planning;
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e Governance competencies like Director in large organization, compliance focus, leadership, risk management experience, Business
judgment.

Based on the above-mentioned skill matrix, the specific areas of focus of individual Board members have been highlighted. However,

absence of mark againsta members' name does not necessarily mean that the member does not possess the corresponding skill.

Sr. Skills/Expertise/ Governance Industry Personal Technical Governance
No Competencies skills skills attributes skills competencies
1 | Mr. Sanjiv Shroff 4 v v v v
2 | Mr. Ameya Shroff 4 4 v v v
3 | Mr. Rahul Shroff v v v v v
4 | Mrs. Dipika Shroff v 4 4 v v
5 | Mr. N.G. Khaitan v v v v v
6 | Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan v 4 v v v
7 | Mr. Narayan Shroff v 4 4 v v
8 | Mr. R.N. Sharma v v v v v

COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

In compliance with the statutory requirements, the Board has constituted various committees with specific terms of reference and
scope. The objective is to focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of the diverse matters. The Board of Directors
has Constituted Five (5) Committees of the Directors with adequate delegation of powers to discharge urgent business of the Company.
Ason March 31,2022 the Board has established the following committees as below:

e AuditCommittee

* Nomination & Remuneration Committee
e Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

» Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
* Finance Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ason March 31,2022, Audit Committee comprises of Four (4) Directors, all being the Non - Executive Directors. Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma,
Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma, Independent
Director, has sound financial knowledge as well as many years of experience in general management. All members of the Audit
Committee, including the Chairman, have accounting and financial management expertise. The composition of the Audit Committee
meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Act and the Listing Regulations.

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the committee. The chairman of the Audit Committee was present in the 43rd Annual
General Meeting.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Audit Committee met 4 times i.e. on June 21, 2021, August 10, 2021, November 10, 2021 and
February 09, 2022. The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022 and the attendance of members at the meetings held
during the financial year 2021-22 are given below:
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Name of Members Nature of Membership No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
/ Category during Tenure attended

Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma Independent 4 4

Chairman Director

Mr. Narayan Shroff Independent 4 3

Member Director

Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan Independent 4 4

Member Director

Mr. Nand Gopal Khiatan Non—Executive 4 4

Member Director

THETERMS OF REFERENCE OF THEAUDITCOMMITTEE ARE BROADLY STATED AS UNDER:
A. Therole of the audit committee shallinclude the following:

1. oversight of the listed entity's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficientand credible;

2. recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed entity;
approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

4. reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the
board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) matters required to be included in the director's responsibility statement to be included in the board's report in terms of
clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

d) significantadjustments madeinthe financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) disclosure of any related party transactions;

g) modified opinion(s)inthe draftauditreport;

reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

6. reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of fundsraised through an issue (public issue, rights
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document
/ prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or
rights issue, and makingappropriate recommendationsto the board to take up stepsin this matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor'sindependence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
8. approval oranysubsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;
scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever itis necessary;
11. evaluation ofinternalfinancial controls and risk management systems;
12. reviewing, withthe management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

13. reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and
seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14. discussion withinternal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

15. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;
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16. discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. tolookinto the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-
payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. toreview the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

19. approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of
the candidate;

20. Carryingoutany otherfunction asis mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

21. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company inthe subsidiary exceeding
rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances /
investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision.

22. consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemesinvolving merger, demerger, amalgamation
etc., on the listed entity and itsshareholders.

The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

Eal I e -

the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit
committee.
5. statement of deviations:
a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in
terms of Regulation 32(1).
b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation32(7).
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
As on March 31, 2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Directors with all of them being
Independent Directors of the Company. Mr. Narayan Shroff, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The composition
of the Committee meets the requirements of Section 178 of the Act and the Listing Regulations. The Company Secretary of the
Company acts as the secretary of the Committee.
During the financial year 2021-22, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 timesi.e. on June 21, 2021, August 10, 2021,
and February 09, 2022. The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022 and the Attendance of members at the meetings held
during the financial year 2021-22 is given below:

Name of Members Nature of Membership No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
/ Category during Tenure attended

Mr. Narayan Shroff Independent 3 2
Chairman Director

Mr. R. N. Sharma Independent 3 3
Member Director

Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasn Independent 3 3
Member Director
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TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is empowered with the following terms of reference and responsibilities in accordance

with the provision of law and Nomination and Remuneration policy:

1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend
to the board of directors a policy relatingto, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

[(1A). For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience onthe Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role
and capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an
independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may:

a) usetheservicesof anexternal agencies, if required;

b) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

c) considerthe time commitments of the candidates.]

2. formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

4. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointmentand removal.

5. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance
evaluation ofindependent directors.

[(6) recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.]

CRITERIAFORPERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD

As per the provisions of the Listing Regulation, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the evaluation criteria for

performance evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. The manner for performance evaluation of Directors including the

independent Directors, Committees, and Board as a whole is covered in the Directors' Report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the performance of the Directors including the

Independent Directors. The said criteria provides certain parameters like understanding the roles and responsibilities including short

term and long term goals of the company, proactive discussions, expertise, to express disagreement wherever necessary, engagement

with the management, etc. which is in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and guidelines. Performance evaluation was done
by Nomination and Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on June 21, 2021 and also by Independent Directors in their

meeting held onJune 21, 2021.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Non-Executive Director:- The non-executive directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees for the meetings plus travelling and

other expenses for attending the meetings. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees for each meeting of Board and committee

of Directors attended by them. The Non-Executive Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction with the

Company. The total sitting fees paid during the financial year was Rs. 13,32,500/- and the details are as follows:-

Name of Director Sitting fees paid (Amount in Rs.)
Board Meeting Committee Meeting
Mr. N.G. Khaitan 2,00,000 85,000
Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan 2,00,000 1,00,000
Mr. R.N Sharma 2,00,000 1,17,500
Mr. Narayan Shroff 1,50,000 80,000
Mrs. Dipika Shroff 2,00,000 -

-26-



- RELIANCE

CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

Executive Directors: The appointment/re-appointment and remuneration of Executive Directors including Managing Director and
Whole-time Director is governed by the recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration Committee, Resolutions passed by the
Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company. The remuneration package of Managing Director and Whole-time Director
comprises of salary, perquisites, allowances, commission, contributions to Provident fund and other retirement benefits as approved
by shareholders at the General Meetings/ postal ballots. The nomination and Remuneration policy was displayed on the Company's
website at i.e. https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-and-policies/. The Details of remuneration paid to
Executive Directors during the Financial Year 2021-22 are as under;

Name of Basic Salary |Ex- gratia |Allowances |Commission [Variable pay [Total Service |Period Notice period
Executive Contract And Severance Fees
Directors (Years)
1.09.20 to 6 Month Notice & 3
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff |63,00,000 [9,60,000 |94,35,000 |72,00,000 30,00,000 2,68,95,000 3 3'1 Oé )3 Month salary in lieu
T thereof
Mr. Rahul Shroff  |57,00,000 |7,56,000 |92,45400 |72,00000 |30,00000 |2,59,01,000 | 3  |280%-21to |6Month Notice &3
25.09.24 Month salary in lieu
thereof
Mr. Ameya Shroff |54,00,000 |[6,60,000 |84,60,000 |72,00,000 30,00,000 2,47,20,000 3 01.08.2019 |6 Month Notice & 3
t031.07.22 [Month salary in lieu
thereof

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In compliance with requirements of the Listing Regulations and provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Company has a Stakeholders'
Relationship Committee. As on March 31, 2022, the Committee comprises Three (3) members of whom one (1) is an Executive Director
and two (2) are Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Narayan Shroff, Non-Executive, Independent Director is the Chairman of the Committee.
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a secretary to the Committee.

During the financial year 2021-22, the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee met 4 times i.e. on June 21, 2021, August 10, 2021,

November 10,2021 and February 09, 2022. The composition of the Committee as on March 31, 2022 and the attendance of committee
members at the meetings held during the financial year 2021-22, are given below:

Name of Members

Nature of Membership

No. of Meetings held

No. of Meetings

/ Category during Tenure attended
Mr. Narayan Shroff Independent 4 3
Chairman Director
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff Executive Director 4 4
Member
Mr. R. N. Sharma Independent 4 4
Member Director

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chirag Gupta was the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company till January 31, 2022. On his resignation, Mr.
Utkarsh Gaur was appointed as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. May 25, 2022 for complying with
the requirements of the Listing Regulations and applicable laws.

INVESTORS' COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND RESOLVED DURING THEYEAR

During the financial year 2021-22, the Complaints and queries received by the Company are general in nature, including issues relating
non - receipt of dividend warrants, Annual Reports, etc. All the complaints were resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders and no
complaint was pending as on March 31, 2022.
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Details of Investor complaints received and resolved during the financial year 2021-22 are as follows:

Quarter ended on No. of Complaints received No. of Complaint Resolved No. of Complaints Pending
30.06.2021 0 0 -
30.09.2021 2 -
31.12.2021 0 0 -
31.03.2022 1 1 -
Total 3 3 -

Note: The above table also includes the compliant received through SEBI Scores.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, inter alia, include the following:

« Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares,
non-receipt of annual report, issue of new/duplicate share certificates, etc.

« Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

» Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

* Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

In compliance with the requirements of the Act, the Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.

Ason March 31,2022, the Committee comprises of 3 members of whom 2 are Independent Directors and 1 is Executive Director. Mr. Ram
Niwas Sharma, Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as a secretary to the Committee.
On the recommendation of the CSR Committee, the Board had approved the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) of the
Company which is also available on the website of the company at https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-and-
policies/.

The CSR Committee met once duringthe yearonJune 21,2021. The table below provides the attendance of CSR Committee members;

Name of Members Nature of Membership No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
/ Category during Tenure attended

Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma Independent Director 1 1
Chairman

Mr. Rahul Shroff Executive Director 1 1
Member

Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan Independent Director 1 1
Member

FINANCE COMMITTEE

For various day-to-day requirements and to facilitate seamless operations, the Company has formed a functional Committee known as
the Finance Committee. The Committee meets as and when deems necessary to cater to the day-to-day requirements of the Company.
The committee normally discusses the matter like acceptance of sanction letters from Banks, to execute the required documents in
respect of loan/ limits granted by banks and for approval of any other financial decisions, etc. The committee met 9 times during the FY
2021-22 on April 10, 2021, May 14, 2021, July 08, 2021, July 30, 2021, September 29, 2021, November 10, 2021, November 25, 2021,
January 10,2022 and March 07, 2022.
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The table below provides the attendance of committee members:

Name of Members Nature of Membership No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings
/ Category during Tenure attended
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff Executive Director 9 9
Mr. Rahul Shroff Executive Director 9 9
Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma Independent Director 9 9
POSTALBALLOT

During the financial year 2021-22, no resolution has been passed through Postal Ballot. Also, no business proposed at the ensuing Annual

General Meeting requires passing through postal ballot.
GENERALBODY MEETINGS

The details of last three Annual General Meetings are as follows:

Year Time, Day, Date & Location Summary of Special Resolutions
2020-21 10:45 A.M. (IST) August 16, 2021 (Monday) Via e Nospecial resolution was passed
(43rd AGM) Video Conferencing Mode hosted at the registered
office of the company situated at Village Kanpur,
Udaipur-313003
2019-20 10:15 A.M. (IST) September 28, 2020 (Monday) Via e To re-appoint Mr. Sanjiv Shroff as the Managing
(42nd AGM) Video Conferencing Mode hosted at the registered Director of the Company.
office of the company situated at Village Kanpur,
Udaipur-313003
2018-19 ( 10:30 A.M. (IST) September 07, 2019 (Saturday) at e To re-appoint Shri Ramadoss Srinivasan as an
41st AGM) Alka Hotel, Near Shastri Circle, Udaipur (Raj.) 313001 Independent Director of the company.

e To re-appoint Shri Kishori Lal Sonthalia as an
Independent Director of the company.

e To re-appoint Shri Narayan Shroff as an Independent
Director of the company.

e To re-appoint Shri Ameya Shroff as a whole-time
Director designated as Executive Director of the
company.

e Revision in the terms of payment of remuneration to
Shri Rahul Shroff, Executive Director.

e Revision in the terms of payment of remuneration to
ShriSanjiv Shroff, Managing Director.

e To authorize the board under Section 62(3) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

GREEN INITIATIVES BY MCA

In compliance with the provisions of Section 20 of the Act, the Company proposes to send all correspondences / communications through
email to those shareholders, who have registered their email id with their depository participants/Company's registrar and share transfer
agent. In case the shareholders desire to receive printed copy of such communications, they may send requisition to the Company. The
Company will forthwith send a printed copy of the communication to the respective shareholder.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly, half yearly financial results along with a statement of assets and liabilities and annual audited financial results of the
Company have been sent to the Stock Exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board of Directors. The results are normally
published in Financial Express (English) and Jai Rajasthan (Hindi). Financial Results and Shareholding Pattern and other disclosures are
also available on Company's website at www.reliancechemotex.com. Further Press Release and Investor Presentations, if any are also
displayed on Company Website at www.reliancechemotex.com.

GENERALSHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

1. Annual General Meeting Date, Time and Venue Tuesday, September 27, 2022, at 11.00 A.M. (IST)
through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-
Visual Means (“OAVM”) to be hosted at the
registered office of the company situated at Village
Kanpur, Udaipur (Raj.) 313003

2. Financial Year The Company has adopted the financial year of 12
months ending in March every year.

3. Dividend payment date and book closure date The final dividend, if approved by shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General meeting, will be made
payable within 30 days of date of declaration i.e.
September27,2022

4. Book closure date From September 21, 2022 to September 27, 2022
(both daysinclusive)

5. Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited (BSE)

Add: - Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
Mumbai 400001

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)
Add: -Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, Bandra-
Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

The listing fees for the financial year under review
have been paid to the Stock Exchanges where the
equity shares of the Company are listed.

The Company's equity shares are frequently traded
at the BSE Limited and now on NSE also with effect
from May 25, 2022.

BSE Scrip Code: 503162,
6. Stock Code NSE Trading Symbol: RELCHEMQ

M/s Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.

7. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri (East)Mumbai-40009
Ph.No.022-62638200,022-62638268
Fax:022-62638299

E-mail: info@bigshareonline.com
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8. Share Transfer System Pursuant to the changes made in Regulation 40 of
Listing Regulation, the transfer of securities shall
not be processed unless the securities are held in
dematerialized form.

9. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded
in Dematerialized form and are available for trading
with both the depositories i.e. National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The shareholders
can hold the Company's shares with any of the
depository participants, registered with these
depositories. ISIN for the Company's shares is
INE750D01016. As on March 31, 2022,
approximately 97% of the company's equity shares
are in electronic format. The Company's equity
shares are frequently traded at the BSE Limited and
now on NSE also with effect from May 25, 2022.

10. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Nil
Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on equity

11. Plant Location Village Kanpur, Post Box No. 73,
Dist. Udaipur-313003, Rajasthan.

12. Address for Correspondence Registered Office :
Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Post Box No. 73, Village: Kanpur Dist:
Udaipur-313003 (Raj.)
Ph.No.0294-2490488,2491489, 2491490
Fax No.:0294-2490067

E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com
Website: www.reliancechemotex.com

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent :

M/s Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.

Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park,
Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road,
Andheri (East)Mumbai-40009
Ph.No.022-62638200, 022-62638268
Fax:022-62638299

E-mail: info@bigshareonline.com
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MARKET PRICE DATA

Monthly high/ low market price of the company's Equity Shares traded on BSE Limited and performance in Comparison to BSE Sensex

are as follows:

(Amount in Rs. per Share)

RCIL Share Data BSE Sensex
Month High Price Low Price High Price Low Price
Apr-21 99.90 72.00 50,375.77 47,204.50
May-21 106.00 84.55 52,013.22 48,028.07
Jun-21 141.00 88.40 53,126.73 51,450.58
Jul-21 179.80 124.10 53,290.81 51,802.73
Aug-21 173.95 118.00 57,625.26 52,804.08
Sep-21 180.00 144.00 60,412.32 57,263.90
Oct-21 201.00 152.60 62,245.43 58,551.14
Nov-21 274.00 178.90 61,036.56 56,382.93
Dec-21 334.00 250.00 59,203.37 55,132.68
Jan-22 360.00 280.00 61,475.15 56,409.63
Feb-22 320.00 221.00 59,618.51 54,383.20
Mar-22 269.00 225.00 58,890.92 52,260.82
DISTRIBUTIONS OF SHAREHOLDING ASON MARCH 31,2022 AREASUNDER
According to category of holding:
Category No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Shareholding
Clearing Members 16 3767 0.05
Corporate Bodies 42 264953 3.51
IEPF 1 223957 2.97
Foreign Portfolio Investor 1 105159 1.39
Non-Resident Indians 78 55273 0.73
Promoters 7 747040 9.90
Corporate Bodies (Promoter Group) 5 4212779 55.85
Directors 3 145900 1.93
Other Directors 3 300 0.00
Public 9994 1783435 23.64
Trusts 1 1000 0.01
Total 10151 7543563 100.00

According to Number of Equity Shares:

Category No. of Shareholders | % of Shareholders | No. of Shares held % of Shareholding
1-500 9791 96.45% 642475 8.51%
501-1000 170 1.67% 133581 1.77%
1001-2000 70 0.68% 106997 1.41%
2001-3000 24 0.23% 61846 0.81%
3001-4000 14 0.13% 49990 0.66%
4001-5000 21 0.20% 99666 1.32%
5001-10000 20 0.19% 147478 1.95%

Over 10000 41 0.40% 6301530 83.53%
Total 10151 100.00% 7543563 100.00%
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TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED/UNPAID AMOUNTS TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), dividend, if not claimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid
Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to IEPF.

Further, all the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more from the date of
transferto unpaid dividend account shall also be transferred to IEPF Authority. The said requirement does not apply to shares in respect
of which thereis a specific order of Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining any transfer of the shares.

In the interest of the shareholders, the Company sends periodical reminders to the shareholders to claim their dividends in order to
avoid transfer of dividends/shares to IEPF Authority. Notices in this regard are also published in the newspapers and the details of
unclaimed dividends and shareholders whose shares are liable to be transferred to the IEPF Authority, are uploaded on the Company's
website http://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/financial-reports/.

In light of the aforesaid provisions, the Company has during the year, transferred to IEPF the unclaimed dividends for the financial year
2013-14, outstanding for seven years, of the Company.

Further, shares of the Company, in respect of which dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more from the date of
transfer to unpaid dividend account, have also been transferred to the demat account of IEPF Authority.

The Members who have a claim on above dividends and shares may claim the same from IEPF Authority by submitting an online
applicationin web Form No. I[EPF-5 available on the website www.iepf.gov.in and sending a physical copy of the same, duly signed to the
Company's RTA, along with requisite documents enumerated in the web Form No. IEPF-5. No claims shall lie against the Company in
respect of the dividend/shares so transferred.

The following tables give information relating to various outstanding dividends and the due date for transfer to IEPF:

SR.NO FINANCIAL YEAR UNCLAIMED DUE DATE FOR
AMOUNT (Rs.) TRANSFER TO
IEPF ACCOUNT
1. 2014-15 410999 31-10-22
2. 2015-16 386018 18-10-23
3. 2016-17 365974 02-10-24
4. 2017-18 231560 12-10-25
5. 2018-19 (Special Dividend 103305 12-10-26
@ Rs. 0.50 Per shares)
2018-19 (Final Dividend @ 200818 12-10-26
Rs. 1 per share)
6. 2019-20 192080 02.11.27
7. 2020-21 329620 21.09.28

DISCLOSURE OF COMMODITY PRICE RISKS OR FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS AND COMMODITY HEDGING ACTIVITY

The Company is exporter of yarn and has natural hedging for its foreign currency exposures.

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO CREDIT RATING

Ason March 31,2022, India Ratings & Research Private Limited has upgraded Long - Term Issuer Rating to 'IND BBB' from 'IND BBB -'.
PLANTLOCATION

Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

i. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: In compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
Insider Trading), Regulations, 2015 (“the Regulations”) as amended by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
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Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the Company has systems and procedures to prohibit insider trading activity and
has formulated a Code on Insider Trading ('Code') for designated persons who may have access to the Company's price sensitive
information. The Company follows highest standards of transparency and fairness in dealing with all stakeholders and ensures that
no insider shall use his or her position with or without knowledge of the Company to gain personal benefit or to provide benefit to
any third party.

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the Financial Year under review, were on an arm's length basis, in the
ordinary course of business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations. There were
no materially significant related party transactions which could have potential conflict with interest of the Company at large.

No penalties or Strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any
matter related to Capital Markets for non-Compliance by the Company during the last three years.

iv. The Company has Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy and the same was posted on the Company website at
https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-and-policies/. The detailed disclosure on the policy is else wherein
the Board's Report forming part of the annual report. Further, no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

v. The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Regulations. Also, the entire mandatory requirement has been
appropriately complied with and has ensured the implementation of non-mandatory items such as:-

*  Unmodified audit opinions/reporting;
e Separate personsto the post of chairmanand MD
e Internal auditor reports directly to Audit Committee, etc.

vi. Weblink:

*  Familiarization programme for Independent Directors: https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/grievance- management/
»  Related party transaction policy: https://www.reliancechemotex.com/reports/code-of-conduct-and-policies/
e Material Subsidiary: Not Applicable

vii. There have notbeen anysignificant changesinthe accounting policies during the year.

viii. No pecuniary relationship or transaction with the Non-Executive Directors.

ix. The certificate required under Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulations, duly signed by the Managing Director and Chief Financial
Officer of the company which was placed before the Board is annexed to this report as Annexure A.

x. Certificate from M/s V. M. & Associates, Company Secretaries has been obtained which is forming part of the annual report as
Annexure B confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the Company has been disqualified.

xi. Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in
the network firm/ network entity of which the statutory auditor isa partis given below: .

(Rs. in Lakh)
Payment to Statutory Auditors FY 2021-22
Audit Fees 7.00
Tax Audit Fees 2.44
Other Services 1.60
Reimbursement of expenses 1.87
Total 12.91
xii. Disclosure in relation to Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is forming

part of Board's report forming part of thisannual report.

xiii. The Company has complied with all the requirements in regards to the extent applicable under Sub paras (2) to (10) of Para C to

Schedule V of the Listing Regulations.
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xiv. The code of conduct has been circulated to all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel and they have affirmed
their compliance with the said code of conduct for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022. A declaration to this effect signed by
Mr. Sanjiv Shroff, Managing Director of the Company stating that the members of Board of Directors and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of Board of Directors and Senior Management is annexed as Annexure
Ctothe Corporate Governance Report.

xv. Asrequired by Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V, Part E of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the certificate given by M/s Jain Pramod Jain &
Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the company regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance, is
annexed as Annexure D.

xvi. The Company has not provided any loans and advances to any firms/companies in which Directors are interested.

xvii. During the financial year 2021-22, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of its Committees.

xviii. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account: Not applicable.

xix. Particulars of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting have been provided in the
Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

xX. During the year under review, the Company did not raise any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

xxi. The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
while preparing Financial Statements for the financial year 2021-22

For and on behalf of the Board of Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Place: Mumbai Sanjiv Shroff Rahul Shroff
Date: August 11,2022 Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 00296008 DIN:02301693

Registered Office: Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
CIN:L40102RJ1977PLC0O01994

Tel: +91(0) 294 2491489 ;+91 (0) 294 2491490 | Fax:+91(0) 294 2490067
E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com | Website: www.reliancechemotex.com
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Annexure- A

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATE

To,
The Board of Directors
RELIANCE CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LTD

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of their knowledge and
belief:

i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might
be misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or volatile of the listed entity's code of conduct.

3.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have evaluated
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed to the
auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are
aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee;
i.  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii.  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over financial reporting.

For Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Place: Mumbai Chandrasekaran Rajagopalan Sanijiv Shroff
Dated : May 25, 2022 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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Annexure-B

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members,

Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd
Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73
Udaipur - 313 003 (Rajasthan)

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Reliance Chemotex
Industries Ltd having CIN: L40102RJ1977PLC001994 and having registered office at Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur-313003
(Rajasthan) (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby
certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2022 have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of the Director DIN
1. Nand Gopal Khaitan 00020588
2. Dipika Shroff 00226941
3. Ramadoss Srinivasan 00235831
4. Sanjiv Shroff 00296008
5. Ram Niwas Sharma 00368947
6. Rahul Shroff 02301693
7. Narayan Shroff 05207412
8. Ameya Shroff 05315616

Ensuring the eligibility of, for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Place: Jaipur For V. M. & Associates
Date: May 25, 2022 Company Secretaries
UDIN: F0O09985D000381554 (1CSI Unique Code P1984RJ039200)

PR 581 /2019

CS Vikas Mehta
Partner

Membership No.: FCS 9985
CP No.: 12789
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Annexure- C

DECLARATION AFFIRMATION COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

We hereby confirm that the Company has received from all the members of the Board and Senior Management, for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022, a confirmation that they are in compliance with Company's Code of Conduct.

For Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Sanjiv Shroff
Managing Director
DIN: 00296008

Date: August 11, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure- D

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of regulations of Corporate Governance by Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited (‘the Company') for the year
ended March 31st 2022 as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the 'Listing Regulations').

Management's Responsibility

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and
maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

3. The management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditors' Responsibility

4. Ourresponsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated
inthe Listing Regulations.

5. We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purposes and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by ICAL.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform
Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of the Corporate
Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures include, but not limited to, verification of secretarial records and financial
information of the Company and obtain necessary representations and declarations from directors including independent directors of the
Company.

8. The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our Scope
of work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of
the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken as whole.

Opinion

9. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the representations
provided by the Management, we certify thatthe Company has complied with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17
to 27 andclauses (b)to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para Cand D of Schedule V of the Listing, Regulations during the year ended 31st March 2022.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

10. This Certificate in neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

11. The Certificate is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations
under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other persons or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty or care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hand it may come without our prior
consentin writing. We have no responsibility to update this Certificate for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this Certificate.

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registration No. 016746 N
Place: New Delhi
Date:11.08.2022

P.K. Jain

Partner

Membership No. 010479

UDIN: 22010479A0WC002435
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of RELIANCE CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of RELIANCE CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2022, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changesin equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements' section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics'
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described
below to be key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

.| Valuationof Trade Receivable

Trade receivables is a significant
item in the Company's financial
statements as at March 31, 2022
and assumptions used for
estimating the credit loss on
certain receivables is an area
which is determined by
management's judgment.

The Company makes an
assessment of the estimated
credit losses on certain trade
receivables based on credit risk,
project status, past history, latest
discussion/ correspondence with
the customer.

Given the significance of these
receivables in the financial
statements as at 31st March,
2022, we determined this to be a
key audit matter

Our audit procedure included,
among others:

e Evaluated the accounting
policy of the company.

e Inquired with senior
management regarding
status of collectability of the
receivable.

e Amount recovered
subsequent to the Balance
Sheet date.

* Discussion of material
outstanding balances with
the audit committee.

» Assessed the information/
assumptions used by the
Management to determine
the expected credit losses by
considering credit risk of the
customer, cash collection,
and the level of credit loss
overtime;

Based on our work as stated
above, no significant
deviations were observed in
respect of management's
assessment of valuation of
trade receivables

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
inthe Standalone Report 2021-22. Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with [the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realisticalternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee thatan audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Wealso:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
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order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11)
of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs3and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit.

a)
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b)

c)

e)

f)

g)

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Reportareinagreement with the books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

In our opinion, Managerial remuneration for the year ended
31.03.2022 has been paid /provided by the company to its director
in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
scheduleV totheAct

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's

Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
onitsfinancial positioninits Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

iv. The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
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Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022

entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

v. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

vi. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

vii. (a) The dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and
paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with
section 123 of the Companies Act 2013

(b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed
dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the
members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The
amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with section
123 of the Act, as applicable.

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

(P.K.Jain)

Partner

Membership No.010479
UDIN: 22010479AJ0ISV4841
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Annexure 'A' to Independent Auditors' Report

Annexure 'A' to Independent Auditors' Report of RELINCE CHEMOTEX
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of
“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of
even date)

i.  Inrespect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plantand Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified
by the management according to the regular programme of
periodical verification which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
Property, Plant and Equipment. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

Accordingto the information and explanations given to usand
on the basis of our examination of records of the Company,
the title deeds of immovable properties (other than
properties where the company is the lessee & the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statement are held in the name of
the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and
Equipmentand intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanation provided to us,
no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for
holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

The inventories of the company at all its locations (except
stock in transit) have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion the
procedure and coverage of such physical verification by the
management is appropriate. Further no material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification by
the management.

According to the information and explanation provided to us,
working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore has been
sanctioned/renewed from banks during the year. Further,
based on our examination of records of the company, the
quarterly statement/returns filed by the company with such
banks, pursuant to such working capital limits are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the company except
inthe following cases. ( Please refer note No. 55)
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Quarter Particulars Value as per | Value as per | Variation
ended statement books of
submitted to account
bank (Rs. In Lacs)
(Rs. In Lacs)

30.06.2021 Raw Material 1445.94 1435.68 -10.26
Finished Goods 1346.27 1412.83 66.56

Process Stock 1217.44 1125.67 -91.77

Book Debts 941.68 1036.39 94.71
30.09.2021 Raw Material 1768.95 1765.18 -3.77
Finished Goods 1311.33 1321.80 10.47

Process Stock 1337.79 1251.69 -86.10

Book debts 909.29 1072.17 162.88
31.12.2021 Raw Material 1714.47 1708.45 -6.02
Finished Goods 2085.56 2135.38 49.82

Process Stock 1260.64 1150.02 -110.62

Book debts 1126.87 407.70 -719.17
31.03.2021 Raw Material 1279.91 1272.20 -7.71
Finished Goods 1882.87 1883.70 0.83

Process Stock 1151.26 1119.04 -32.22

Book debts 584.84 543.43 -41.41

The Company has not made investments in, provided any

guarantee or security or granted any loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties except unsecured loan to employees as per company's
established policy during the year, in respect of which:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the
nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to
any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under
clause 3(iii) (a) of the Orderis not applicable.

In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans
or advances in the nature of loans during the year are, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company'sinterest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loan granted
by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal is
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts is regular
as per stipulation.

In respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted
by the Company, there is no overdue amount exceeding
ninety days remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet
date.

No loan or advances in the nature of loans granted by the
Company which has fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over
dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) (f) is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation

given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
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loans, investments made and guarantees and securities provided,
asapplicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within section 73 to 76 of the act and the
companies (Acceptance of deposit) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government
for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima-facie,
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the said
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate and
complete;

vii. Inrespectofstatutory dues:

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in

depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and
Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory
dues applicable toit with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above
which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2022 on
account of disputes are given below:

Nature of | Nature of Amount |Period to which the|Forum where
the dues involved inlamount matter is pending
statute Rs. Relates (Year
ended
Service Service Tax 240837 |16.07.2017 to The Asst.
Tax Act 16.10.2018 Commissioner
Central Excise
Udaipur
Central Excise Duty 23567 |FY. 2001 -2002 The Asst.
Excise Commissioner
Act Central Excise
Udaipur
Income |Income Tax |92500301 |FY. 2017 -18 Appeal Pending
Tax Act at ACIT Circle
1(1) Kolkata
Income Income Tax [13015469 |FY. 2006 -2007, The Assessing
Tax Act 2003-2004,2000 - |Officer, Kolkata
2001, 2005 -2006,
2010-2011, 2013 -
2014, 2018 -2019,
2019-2020,

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded

income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 0f 1961).

-44-

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings orinthe payment of interesttoany lender.
b) Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank

or financial institution or government or any government
authority or by other lender.

c) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the
loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the

Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiary.

f)  The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiary and hence reporting
onclause 3(ix) (f) of the Orderis not applicable.

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of

the Orderisnotapplicable.

b)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partially or optionally) and hence

reporting under clause 3(x) (b) of the Orderis not applicable.

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the

date of thisreport.

c) Thecompany has not received any whistle blower complaints
hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under
clause (xii) of the Orderis notapplicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit
system commensurate with the size and the nature of its

business.
(b)

We have considered the internal audit reports for the year
under audit.

The Company has not entered in to any non-cash transaction with
director or persons connected with them.
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XVi.

Xvii.

Xviii.

XiX.

(a) Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the

Orderisnotapplicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within
the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Orderis not applicable.

The Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial year
covered by our auditand theimmediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the
Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financialassets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that thisis not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
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XX.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company asand when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring
atransfer toa Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies
Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3(xx) (a) of the Orderis not applicable for the year.

(b)

No amount remains unspent under sub section (5) of section
135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project.

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

(P.K.Jain)

Partner

Membership No. 010479
UDIN: 22010479AJ0I1SV4841



Annexure B to the independent Auditors' report of even date on the
Financial Statement of Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub
—section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited as at March 31,2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
forthe year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the Internal Control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of “the Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.” These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate Internal Financial Controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the CompaniesAct,2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Guidance note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the” Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and
the Guidance Note require that we Comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectivelyin all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the adequacy of the Internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
and understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due
tofraudorerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
Internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition of the
assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statementin accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and may not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial control system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on “the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company Considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the “Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25.05.2022

(P.K.Jain)

Partner

Membership No. 010479
UDIN: 22010479AJ0ISV4841
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

NOTE As at 31.03.2022 AS at 31.03.2021
PARTICULARS NO. (Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
ASSETS
(1) Non - current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 13,901.88 10,882.86
(b) Capital Work in Progress 1A 1,015.20 130.55
(c) Investment - Property 2 203.33 207.02
(d) Other intangible assets 3 5.40 3.45
(e) Right of use assets (Lease Property) 4 3,980.85 3,730.30
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 - -
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 598.64 492.56
(g) Other Non Current Assets 7 526.95 243.44
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 4,444.33 4,667.15
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 9 - 10.06
(i) Trade receivables 10 543.43 1,062.30
(iif)Cash and cash equivalents 11 6.86 31.92
(iv)Bank balances Other than (iii) above 12 5,773.18 3,223.60
(v) Other Financial Assets 13 642.77 563.97
(c) Current tax assets (net) 14 56.23 94.15
(d) Other current assets 15 1,621.47 921.50
Total ASSETS 33,320.52 26,264.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 16 755.97 755.97
(b) Other Equity 17 11,386.41 9,682.91
LIABILITIES
(1) Non - Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 4,705.05 3,386.04
(ii) Lease Liabilities 236.06 87.21
(i) Other financial liabilities 19 16.02 12.43
(b) Provisions 20 49.29 44.70
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 2,501.57 2,042.87
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 7,769.19 6,245.92
(ia)Lease Liabilities 85.92 17.10
(ii) Trade payables 23
- Total outstanding due of micro & small enterprises 119.29 90.35
- Total outstanding due of other than micro & small enterprises 2,883.23 1,884.44
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 1,655.92 1,487.80
(b) Other current liabilities 25 1,070.63 448.49
(c) Provisions 26 85.97 78.60
Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 33,320.52 26,264.83
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts ( Note No. 36 to 58) For & On behalf of Board of Directors
As per our Report of even date.
For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 016746N)
P.K. JAIN UTKARSH GAUR R. CHANDRASEKARAN SANIJIV SHROFF RAHUL SHROFF
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Managing Director Executive Director
M.No. 010479 M.No. A60237 Officer DIN- 00296008 DIN - 02301693

Place :New Dehli
Dated : 25 May 2022 -47-
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9 CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
As At 31" March 2022

NOTE As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
PARTICULAR
ULARS NO. (Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)

| Revenue from operations 27 36,177.23 25,562.46
Il Other income 28 658.73 449.29
Il Total income (I +1I) 36,835.96 26,011.75
IV Expenses

Cost of Materials Consumed 29 18,298.05 12,501.94

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress etc. 30 (544.32) (133.87)

Employee Benefits Expense 31 4,710.75 4,234.67

Finance Costs 32 1,214.85 964.80

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 33 852.98 759.87

Other Expenses 34 9,568.52 6,648.11

Total expenses 34,100.83 24,975.52
Y Profit before tax (Il - IV) 2,735.13 1,036.23
VI Tax expense 35

(1)Current Tax 501.00 170.50

(2) Mat Credit Entiltlement - (24.97)

(3)Tax for earlier year 4.08 18.79

(4)Deferred Tax 416.83 178.78

Total Tax Expenses 921.91 343.10
VIl Net Profit for the year (V - VI) 1,813.22 693.13
VIII  Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to (loss) or profit

i) Remeasurement (loss)/ Gain on defined benefit plan 58.05 11.86
i) Tax on (i) above (16.90) (3.29)

IX  Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year 41.15 8.57
X  Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII) 1,854.37 701.70
Xl Earnings per equity share

(1) Basic 24.04 9.19

(2) Diluted 24.04 9.19

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts ( Note No. 36 to 58)

As per our Report of even date

For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

P.K. JAIN UTKARSH GAUR
Partner Company Secretary
M.No. 010479 M.No. A60237

Place :New Dehli
Dated : 25 May 2022

R. CHANDRASEKARAN
Chief Financial
Officer

For & On behalf of Board of Directors

SANJIV SHROFF
Managing Director
DIN- 00296008

RAHUL SHROFF
Executive Director
DIN - 02301693
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9 CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RI1977PLC 001994

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2022

(Rs. in Lakh)

PARTICULARS

Year ended
31" March, 2022

Year ended
31" March, 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before exceptional Items and tax as per statement of profit and loss 2,735.13 1,036.23
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 852.98 759.87
Finance cost 1,214.85 964.80
Loss on disposal of Long Term Investment 309.19 -
Bad Debts Written off / Provision for Bad Debts (4.35) 32.73
Provision for Doubtful debts written back - (18.50)
Provision for Investment Written Back (316.03) -
Profit on sale of investment (0.25) -
Interest income (264.48) (123.08)
Sundry Balances written back (32.45) (17.82)
(Profit)/ loss on sale of Property, plant and Equipment (net) 64.74 14.98
Operating profit before working capital changes © 4,559.33 T 2,649.21
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade & other receivables 523.22 251.17
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 222.82 (1,161.73)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets (947.40) 838.29
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets (184.88) 103.33
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 171.71 825.12
Increase/ (Decrease) in Lease Liabilities 304.03 7.47
Increase/(Decrease) in trade & other payables 1,060.18 (797.00)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities 622.13 34.84
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 11.96 (15.85)
Less: Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (406.24) (18.98)
Net cash flows (used in)/ generated from operating activities "~ 5936.86 © 2,715.87
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
INFLOWS
Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment 133.75 80.34
Interest received 247.58 95.60
Sale proceeds from Investments 17.17 -
398.50 175.94
OUTFLOWS
Purchase of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets (4,797.81) (1,605.19)
Addition in ROU assets (406.14) -
Increase in Loans and Advances - (18.11)
Increase in Investement - (10.06)
Increase in Other Bank Balance (including Deposit within 3 to 12 Months Maturity) (2,549.58) (2,828.95)
_ (7,753.53) _ (4,462.31)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (7,355.03) (4,286.37)
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9 CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

(Rs. in Lakh)

PARTICULARS

Current Year
31" March, 2022

Previous Year
31*March ,2021

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
INFLOWS

Proceeds of Short Term Borrowings (net)
Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings (net)

OUTFLOWS

Repayment of Lease Liability (Principal and interest)
Divident and DDT paid on Equity Share

Interest paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Add : Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year

1,523.27
1,319.00

2,842.27

(86.37)
(150.87)
(1,211.92)

(1,449.16)

1,393.11

(25.06)

31.92
6.86

2,164.02
532.56
2,696.58

(89.97)
(70.38)
(1,010.77)

(1,171.12)

1,525.46

(45.04)
76.96

31.92

Notes:

1 Thecashflow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set outin Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of

cash flows.

2 Additions to property, plant, equipment and intangible assets include movements of capital work-in-progress and intangible assets

under development respectively during the year.

Cash and Cash equivalent as per above comprises of the following

Balances with Banks 2021-22 2020-21
- In Current Accounts 2.78 28.20
- In Saving Accounts (against Employee's Security) 2.03 2.60
Cash on Hand 2.05 1.12
Balances as per statement of Cash Flows 6.86 31.92

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per our Report of even date.
For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

P.K. JAIN UTKARSH GAUR
Partner Company Secretary
M.No. 010479

Place :New Dehli M.No. A60237

Dated : 25 May 2022

R. CHANDRASEKARAN
Chief Financial
Officer

For & On behalf of Board of Directors

SANJIV SHROFF
Managing Director
DIN- 00296008

RAHUL SHROFF
Executive Director
DIN - 02301693
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CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity as on 31st March 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Amount (Rs. in Lakh)

Balance at 01.04.2020

Movement during the year (Rights issued during the year)

Balance at 31.03.2021
Movement during the year
Balance at 31.03.2022

755.97

755.97

755.97

B. Other Equity

Amount (Rs. in Lakh)

Particulars

Other

Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive ) Total
(Rs. in Lakh)
Securities General Retained Re-measurement
Premium Reserve Earning Gain/(Loss) on
Defined Benefit Plans

Balance as at 31st March 2020 2,561.96 644.79 5,823.68 26.24 9,056.67
Profit for the year - 693.13 - 693.13
Share Premium for the Year - - - -
Adjustment of Right to use Assets (Note 48) - - - - -
Transfer to / from Retained Earning - - 34.80 (34.80) -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 8.56 8.56
Dividend & Tax - - (75.45) - (75.45)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 2,561.96 644.79 6,476.16 (0.00) 9,682.91
Profit for the year - - 1,813.22 - 1,813.22
Other comprehensive income - - 41.15 41.15
Transfer to / from Retained Earning - - 41.15 (41.15) -
Dvidend & Tax - - (150.87) - (150.87)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 2,561.96 644.79 8,179.66 - 11,386.41
As per our Report of even date. For & On behalf of Board of Directors
For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

P.K. JAIN UTKARSH GAUR . CHANDRASEKARAN SANJIV SHROFF RAHUL SHROFF
Partner Company Secretary Chief Financial Managing Director Executive Director
M.No. 010479 DIN - 02301693

Place :New Dehli
Dated : 25 May 2022

M.No. A60237

Officer

DIN- 00296008
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9 CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 1
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Lakhs
Free Hold Land Leasehold Buildings Pla.nt and Furn.iture Vehicles O.f-ﬁce Total
Land Equipment |and Fixtures Equipment
Gross Block
Cost as at 1st April, 2020 350.00 - 3,406.96 7,677.24 216.14 170.93 79.12 11,900.39
Additions during the year - - 327.93 1,704.51 6.42 - 30.09 2,068.95
Deduction/Adjustment during the year - - 0.36 467.77 0.60 - - 468.73
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 350.00 - 3,734.53 8,913.98 221.96 170.93 109.21 13,500.61
Additions during the year - - 385.82 3,469.24 9.04 7.21 38.16 3,909.47
Deduction/Adjustment during the year - - 0.05 338.45 - 21.99 0.42 360.91
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 350.00 - 4,120.30 12,044.77 231.00 156.15 146.95 17,049.17
Accumulated Depreciation -
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - - 523.61 1,617.72 96.69 83.20 54.68 2,375.90
Depreciation for the year - - 125.16 427.72 25.63 26.06 10.70 615.27
Deduction/Adjustment during the year - - - 372.93 0.49 - - 373.42
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 - - 648.77 1,672.51 121.83 109.26 65.38 2,617.75
Depreciation for the year - - 136.73 505.97 24.56 10.41 14.25 691.92
Deduction/Adjustment during the year - - - 144.22 - 18.05 0.11 162.38
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - - 785.50 2,034.26 146.39 101.62 79.52 3,147.29
Net Block -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 350.00 - 3,085.76 7,241.47 100.13 61.67 43.83 10,882.86
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 350.00 - 3,334.80 10,010.51 84.61 54.53 67.43 13,901.88
Capital Work in Progress as at 31st Mar 21 130.55
Capital Work in Progress as at 31st Mar 22 1,015.20
Note : Preoperative Expenses allocated to Fixed Assets or lying in capital work in progress includes: (Rs. in Lakh)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Interest on Loan 126.56 46.61
Processing Fees and Charges 48.39 21.30
Salaries and Wages 2.55 0.97
Professional Fees 18.00 -
Total 195.50 68.88
NOTE NO.1A
Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
CWIP Ageing Schedule (Rs. in Lakh)
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
Projects in Progress as on 31.03.2022 1,015.20 - - 1,015.20
Projects in Progress as on 31.03.2021 130.55 - - 130.55
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Note No. 2

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakh)

Leasehold Land

Gross Block
Cost as at 1st April, 2020 225.53
Additions during the year -
Deduction/Adjustment during the year
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 225.53
Additions during the year -
Deduction/Adjustment during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 225.53
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 14.80
Depreciation for the year 3.70
Deduction/Adjustment during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 18.50
Depreciation for the year 3.70
Deduction/Adjustment during the year -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 22.20
Net Block
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 207.03
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 203.33

The fair value of Investment Property as on 31st March, 2022 is Rs. 284.62 Lacs (PY Rs. 225.00 Lacs) after considering the rental income
from Current Lease and other assumptions that market participants would use while pricing Investment Property under current market
condition.

The fair value of investment property is based on the valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Registered
Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017.

(Rs. In lakh)

Information regarding Income and Expenditure of Investment Property Year ended Year ended

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rental Income derived from Investment Property 3.60 3.60
Less : Depreciation 3.70 3.70
Profit (Loss) arising from Investment Properties (0.10) (0.10)
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9 CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

NOTE NO. 3
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Particulars As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS '(Computer Software)
Gross Block
Opening Balance 35.98 35.63
Additions during the year 3.72 0.35
Closing Balance 39.70 35.98
Amortisation
Opening Balance 32.53 29.78
Amortization during the year 1.77 2.75
Closing Balance 34.30 32.53
Net Block 5.40 3.45
Note No. 4
Right of Use Assets (Lease Property) Rs. in Lakh
Particulars Land Building Total
Balance as at April 1, 2020 3,710.05 158.41 3,868.46
Additions - - -
Deletions - - -
Depreciation / Amortization 65.09 73.07 138.16
Balance as at March 31, 2021 3,644.96 85.34 3,730.30
Additions - 406.14 406.14
Deletions - - -
Depreciation / Amortization 65.09 90.50 155.59
Balance as at March 31, 2022 3,579.87 400.98 3,980.85
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(Rs. In lakh)

As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021

NOTE NO. 5

INVESTMENTS (UNQUOTED)

("Class A" Shares of M/s V S Lignite Power Pvt.Ltd.)

16,74,719 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each - 167.47

1485629, 0.01% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each - 148.56

Less:- Provision for diminution in value of Investement - (316.03)

Aggregate book value of unquoted Investment - -

Note : The investment is measured to Fair value through Profit & Loss Account.

NOTE NO. 6

Other Financial Assets ("Unsecured, Considered Good")

Fixed deposit accounts having maturity of more than 12 months 137.90 32.41

Security Deposit For Rental Premises 200.24 200.00

Security Deposits{Others) 260.50 260.15
598.64 492.56

NOTE NO. 7

OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS ("Unsecured, Considered Good")

Capital Advances 526.95 243.44
526.95 243.44

NOTE NO. 8

INVENTORIES

Raw Materials (including in Transit Rs. 193.04 Lakh (PY Rs. 105.38 Lakh)) 1,272.20 2,052.19

Work-in-Progress 1,119.04 1,326.10

Finished Goods [Including Transit Rs. 1143.05 Lakh (PY Rs. 720.27 Lakh)] 1,883.70 1,123.87

Stores and Spares (including in Transit Rs. 7.45 Laks (PY Rs. 18.98 Lakh)) 165.40 152.55

Waste 1.15 10.87

Scrap and Residual Materials 2.84 1.57

4,444.33 4,667.15

NOTE NO. 9

CURRENT INVESTMENT

Fully paid up investment measured at fair value through Profit and Loss Account

Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)

Name Qty (Units)

IDFC Money Manager Fund (Growth) Regular Plan 15774.769 - 5.03

Baroda Liquid Plan A (Growth) 214.042 - 5.03

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investments (In Mutual Funds) - 10.06

Aggregate Amount of NAV of Quoted Investments (In Mutual Funds) - 10.06

NOTE NO. 10

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured, Considered Good)

Trade Receivables Considered Good 543.43 1,062.30

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 36.50 40.85
579.93 1,103.15

Less : Allowances for Credit Losses 36.50 40.85
543.43 1,062.30
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CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Ageing of Trade Receivables Not Due Less than | 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
6 month 1 year
Undisputed Trade Receivables
- Considered Good
As on 31.03.2022 505.10 0.51 - 37.82 543.43
As on 31.03.2021 928.41 61.48 0.20 72.21 - 1,062.30
Disputed Trade Receivables *
As on 31.03.2022 - - - - - 36.50
As on 31.03.2021 - - - - - 40.85
* Provision for the same made
in the books.
(Rs. In lakh)
As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021
NOTE NO. 11

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts

- In Saving Accounts (against Employee's Security)

Cash on Hand

NOTE NO. 12

OTHER BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN (11) ABOVE

In Unclaimed Dividend Account
In Fixed Deposit Accounts

NOTE NO. 13

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured and Considered good)
Export Incentive Receivable

Staff & Other Advances

Interest Subsidy Receivable
Interest receivable on deposits

NOTE NO. 14

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Tax/Tax Deducted at Source
Less:- Provision for Income Tax

NOTE NO. 15

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Unsecured and Considered good)
Prepaid Expenses

Balance With Government Authorities
Advance to Suppliers

Advances towards Expenses

2.78 28.20
2.03 2.60
2.05 1.12
6.86 31.92

18.88 19.81
5,754.30 3,203.79
5,773.18 3,223.60

418.14 333.49
73.58 102.10
113.28 107.51
37.77 20.87
642.77 563.97
540.60 264.65

(484.37) (170.50)

56.23 94.15

109.70 103.71
1,242.74 708.39
130.35 32.51
138.68 76.89
1,621.47 921.50
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(Rs. In lakh)
As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021
NOTE NO.16
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1,35,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,350.00 1,350.00
30,25,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 3,025.00 3,025.00
4,375.00 4,375.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up
75,84,813 (PY. 75,84,813) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 758.48 758.48
758.48 758.48
Subscribed and Fully Paid
75,43,563 (PY. 75,43,563) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 754.36 754.36
# Forfeited Shares (amount originally paid up Rs. 5/-) 1.61 1.61
Total Subscribed and Paid up Capital 755.97 755.97
# Amount Originally paid on 41250 forfeited shares during earlier year.
(a) Promoters Shareholding
SI.No. Promoter Name As at 31st December, 2022 % Change During
No. of Shares % of Total Shares the year
(i) SHANKER LAL SANJIV SHROFF HUF 15,380 0.20% Nil
(ii) SANJIV SHROFF (HUF) 7,680 0.10% Nil
(iii) NAND GOPAL KHAITAN 100 - Nil
(vi) DIPIKA SHROFF 231,150 3.06% Nil
(v) SANJIV SHROFF 145,800 1.93% Nil
(vi) SHANKER LAL SHROFF 195,650 2.59% Nil
(vii) BIMLA DEVI SHROFF 173,180 2.30% Nil
(viii) AMEYA SHROFF 124,000 1.64% Nil
(ix) MODERN FIBOTEX INDIA LIMITED 3,119,719 41.36% -5%
(x) AR FIBTEX PRIVATE LIMITED 300,000 3.98% Nil
(xi) A R COMMERCIAL PRIVATE LIMITED 192,300 2.55% Nil
(xii) A S CHEMOTEX PRIVATE LIMITED 305,380 4.05% Nil
(xiii) SUNRISE PRODUCERS PRIVATE LIMITED 295,380 3.92% Nil
(b) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares:
Description As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 7,543,563 7,543,563
Changes during the year - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,543,563 7,543,563
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(c) Term/Right attached to Equity Shares:
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity share having a face value of Rs.10/- per share ranking paripassu.The
holders of equity shares are entitled to one vote per share.

(d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares based on legal ownership in the Equity share capital of the Company :

Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding
Modern Fibotex India Limited 3,119,719 41.36% 3,494,179 46.32%
(Rs. In lakh)
As at As at

31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021

NOTE NO.17
OTHER EQUITY

Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance 2,561.96 2,561.96
Add : Received during the year - -
Closing Balance 2,561.96 2,561.96

General Reserve

Opening Balance 644.79 644.79
Add : Transferred from surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss - -
Closing Balance 644.79 644.79

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 6,476.16 5,823.68
Add : Profit for the year 1,813.22 693.13
Add : Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income 41.15 34.80

Less: Appropriations

Dividend paid on Equity Shares 137.96 75.45
Tax on Dividend on Equity Shares 12.91 -
Closing Balance 8,179.66 6,476.16

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Opening Balance - 26.24
Add: Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plans 41.15 8.56
Less : Transferred to Retained Earnings 41.15 34.80

Closing Balance - -

TOTAL 11,386.41 9,682.91

-58-



- RELIANCE

CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RI1977PLC 001994

(Rs. In lakh)

As at
31 March, 2022

As at
31" March, 2021

(i)

NOTE NO.18
BORROWINGS (NON CURRENT)

Term Loans from Banks (Secured)

(a) State Bank of India (COVID Loan) 45.00 225.00
(b) Export Import Bank of India 162.49 379.17
(c) HDFC Bank Ltd. (Vehicle Loan) 6.05 13.52
(d) Union Bank Of India (Vehicle Loan) 6.57 -
(e) IDBI GECL Loan 41.25 -
(f) ICICI Bank ECLGS Loan 53.00 -
(g) EXIM Bank ECLGS Loan 108.00 -
422.36 617.69
(ii) Term Loan from Others Parties - (Secured)
(a) Rajasthan State Industrial Development
& Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO) 3,248.76 1,730.51
(b) Deferred Payment Credit of Supplier 268.23 394.26
3,516.99 2,124.77
3,939.35 2,742.46
Less: Installments payble of Term Loan under (i) & (775.30) (901.92)
(ii) above shown in Short term borrowings in Note No. 22 3,164.05 1,840.54
(iii) Loans and Advances (Unsecured)
Loans from other parties (Bodies Corporate) 351.00 386.50
Loans from related parties (Bodies Corporate) 1,190.00 1,159.00
1,541.00 1,545.50
4,705.05 3,386.04
REMARKS:
(i) TermLoansfrom Banks (Secured)
a) TermLoanfrom State Bank of India
The Company has availed COVID Loan from State Bank of India during the year, outstanding Rs. 45 Lakh as on 31.03.22 (PY. Rs. 225
Lakh), including Rs. 45 Lakh (PY. Rs. 180 Lakh) shown under the head short term borrwoings for Current Maturities of Long Term
Debtsin Note 22 issecured by way of joint first charge ranking pari-passu of all present and future current assets of the company
including stock and receivables and second charge over immovable properties (by way of deposit of Title Deeds of Lease Hold
Land). This loan is repayable in 24 month with 18 monthly equal installments from November 2016 and last installment is payable
by September2022. The above termloan carryinterest @ 7.75% p.a.
b) TermLoanfrom ExportImportBank of India

"Term Loan of Rs.1300.00 Lakh , Outstanding Rs. 162.49 Lakh as on 31.03.22 (PY. Rs. 379.17 Lakh ) from EXIM Bank, including Rs.
162.49 Lakh (PY.Rs.216.66 Lakh) shown under the head short term borrwoings for Current Maturities of Long Term Debts in Note
22,issecured by way of joint first charge ranking pari-passu of allimmovable properties (by way of deposit of Title Deeds of Lease
Hold Land), both present and future and hypothecation charge over movable (save and except book debts) machinery, spares,
tools and accessories, present and future, Finished and semi finished products, other goods and uncalled capital, subject to
prior charges created in favour of Bankers for working capital facilities. The above loans of Rs.1300.00 Lakh have also been
guaranteed by Managing Director and one other Director of the Company.
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c)

d)

b)

i)

This loan is repayable in 24 quarterly equal installments from November 2016 and last installment is payable by August 2022. The
abovetermloan carryinterest @LTMLR +2.60% p.a."

Term Loans (Vehicle Loans) from HDFC Bank Limited

Vehicle Loan from HDFC Bank Ltd. of Rs. 22.00 Lakh outstanding Rs. 6.05 Lakh as on 31.03.2022 (PY. Rs. 13.52 Lakh ) including
Rs.6.05 Lakh (PY. Rs. 7.48 Lakh) shown under the head short term borrowings for Current maturity of Long Term debts in Note 22 is
secured by way of Hypothecation of respective car acquired out of the said loan. This Loan is repayable in 36 monthly instalment
commencing from July, 2019 along with interest @ 8.70% per annum and the lastinstalment s payable by Oct.2022.

Term Loans (Vehicle Loans) from Union Bank of India

Vehicle Loan from Union Bank of India of Rs. 7.00 Lakh outstanding Rs. 6.57 Lakh as on 31.03.2022 (PY. Nil) including Rs. 2.20 Lakh
(PY. Nil) shown under the head short term borrowings for current maturity of long term debt in Note 22 was secured by way of
Hypothecation of respective car acquired out of the said loan. This Loan is repayable in 36 monthly instalment commencing from
January 2022 along withinterest @ 7.40% per annum and the last instalment is payable by December 2024.

Term Loan from Rajasthan State Industrial Development & Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO)

"Term Loan of Rs.3550.00 Lakh , Outstanding Rs. 3196.66 Lakh as on 31.03.22 (PY. Rs. 1480.80 Lakh ) including Rs. 366.68 Lakh (P..
153.34 Lakh) shown under the head short term borrwoings for Current Maturities of Long Term Debts in Note 22, is secured by
way of joint first charge ranking pari-passu of allimmovable properties (by way of deposit of Title Deeds of Lease Hold Land), both
present and future and hypothecation charge over movable (save and except book debts) machinery, spares, tools and
accessories, present and future, Finished and semifinished products, other goods and uncalled capital, subject to prior charges
created in favour of Bankers for working capital facilities. The above loans of Rs.3550.00 Lakh have also been guaranteed by
Managing Director and one other Director of the Company.

This loan is repayable in 24 quarterly equal installments from Nov. 2021 and last installment is payable by August 2027. The above
termloan carryinterest @8.50% p.a. "

"Term Loan of Rs.1250.00 Lakh, Outstanding Rs. 52.10 Lakh as on 31.03.22 (PY. 260.10 Lakh ) including Rs. 52.10 Lakh (PY. 208.40
Lakh) shown under the head short term borrwoings for Current Maturities of Long Term Debts in Note 22, is secured by way of
joint first charge ranking pari-passu of all immovable properties (by way of deposit of Title Deeds of Lease Hold Land), both
present and future and hypothecation charge over movable (save and except book debts) machinery, spares, tools and
accessories, present and future, Finished and semifinished products, other goods and uncalled capital, subject to prior charges
created in favour of Bankers for working capital facilities. The above loans of Rs.1250.00 Lakh have also been guaranteed by
Managing Director and one other Director of the Company.

Thisloanis repayable in 24 quarterly equal installments from November 2015 and last installment is payable by August 2021. Three
installments of the loan were deffered as per option given by the government due to Covid - 19. Accordingly the last installment
would get paid by May 2022. The above term loan carry interest @11.5% p.a. "

Deferred Payment Credit of ORB

Deferred payment credit of Rs.415.63 Lakh , Outstanding Rs. 268.23 Lakh as on 31.03.22 (PY. Rs. 394.27 Lakh) including Rs. 140.77
Lakh (PY. Rs. 136.04 Lakh) shown under the head short term borrwoings for Current Maturities of Long Term Debts in Note 22, is
secured by way of hypothecation of the Solar Power Plant of the capacity 300 KW and 1100 KW installed during the year at the
plant at Udaipur. The plant has been supplied and commissioned by Orb Energy and also financed the same. This loan is repayable
in 36 monthly equal installments from May 20 and April 21 for the 300 KW and 1100 KW respectively. The corresponding last
installment will be payable by April 2023 and March 2024. The above term loan carry interest @11.1% p.a.

Term Loan from IDBI GECL Loan

IDBI GECL loan of Rs. 41.25 Lakh to meet working capital needs is secured by second charge by way of hypothecation of current
assets and second charge on company's entire fixed assets at udaipur on pari passu basis with other working capital lender. The
principal shall be repaid in 36 equal monthly installments after the moratorium of 1 year
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v) TermLoanfromICICIBank ECLGS Loan

ICICI Bank ECLGS loan of Rs. 53 Lakh to meet working capital needs is secured by second charge by way of hypothecation of current
assets and second charge on company's entire fixed assets at udaipur on pari passu basis with other working capital leader. The
principal shall be repaid in 36 equal monthly installments after the moratorium of 1 year

vi) Term Loan from EXIm Bank ECLGS Loan

EXIM Bank ECLGS loan of Rs. 108 Lakh to meet working capital needs is secured by second charge by way of hypothecation of
current assets and second charge on company's entire fixed assets at udaipur on pari passu basis with other working capital leader.
The principal shall be repaidin 36 equal monthly installments after the moratorium of 1 year

vi) Terms of Repayment of Unsecured Loans

Aggregate Amount outstanding Rate of Interest

Rs.1541.00 Lakh 09to12% There are no stipulations for repayments. However the Company has
obtained letters/undertakings from lenders that they will seek

(PY.Rs.1545.50 Lakh) repayments of their outstanding Loans as on 31.03.2022, only after

31.03.2023.
(Rs. In lakh)
As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021
NOTE NO.19
Other Financial Liabilities
Security Deposits 16.02 12.43
16.02 12.43
NOTE NO.20
PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT)
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for compansated absence 49.29 44.70
49.29 44.70
NOTE NO.21
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,710.72 2,323.58
(a) 2,710.72 2,323.58
(b) Deferred Tax Assets 209.15 255.74
(c) MAT credit Entitlement - 24.97
(b) 209.15 280.71
Total (a-b) 2,501.57 2,042.87
NOTE NO.22
SHORT TERM BORROWING (CURRENT)
Loan repayble on demand from banks (Secured) 1,810.60 1,806.64
Bill Discounted (Suppliers from Banks, Unseured) 5,183.29 3,537.36
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Refer Note No. 18) 775.30 901.92
7,769.19 6,245.92
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(a) Borrowings of Rs. 1810.60 Lacs- (P. 1806.64 Lacs ) from SBI, IDBI Bank Ltd. and ICICI Bank Ltd. for working capital are secured on
pari passu basis by way of joint hypothecation first charge on entire inventories, trade receivables and other current assets present
& future and secured by second pari passu charge on fixed assets of the Company. Such borrowings are also guaranteed by the
Managing Director and one other Director of the Company.

NOTE NO.23

TRADE PAYABLES ( Unsecured)

Due to Micro and small enterprises 119.29 90.35

Due to other than Micro and small enterprises 2,883.23 1,884.44

Total 3,002.52 1,974.79
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Ageing of Trade Payables Unbilled Not Due Less than 1-2 2-3years | More than Total
1year years 3 years
i) Undisputed Trade Payable as at 31.03.22

Due to Micro and Small Enterprises$ 2.15 117.14 - - - - 119.29
Due to other than Micro and Small 198.40 652.11 1,776.22 14.52 33.62 - | 2,674.87
Enterprises

ii) | Undisputed Trade Payable as at 31.03.21
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises - 88.78 1.57 - 90.35
Due to other than Micro and Small 124.37 427.40 1,077.52 46.79 1,676.08
Enterprises

iii) | Disputed Trade Payable as at 31.03.22
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises
Due to other than Micro and Small 208.36 208.36
Enterprises

iv) | Disputed Trade Payable as at 31.03.21
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises
Due to other than Micro and Small 208.36 208.36
Enterprises

* Principal amount outstanding as at the year end, there is no overdue amount and is not over 45 days towards principal and interest
due to Micro and Small Enterprises. During the period, no interest has been paid to such parties. This information has been
determined to the extent such parties have beenidentified on the basis of information available with the company.

(Rs. In lakh)

As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021

NOTE NO.24

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Interest Accrued but not due on Loans 83.78 80.85
Unclaimed Dividend 18.88 19.81
Expenses Payable 1,494.38 1,282.42
Other Payable for Expenses 58.88 104.72

Total 1,655.92 1,487.80
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As at
31" March, 2022

As at
31" March, 2021

NOTE NO.25

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues Payable
Advance From Customers

Total
NOTE NO.26
PROVISIONS (CURRENT)
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for compansated absence
Total

NOTE NO.27
A. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products

B. Other Operating Revenue

Net Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency translation and transactions - sales
Duty drawback benefits

Premium on transfer of Duty credit scripts

Sale of Scrap

Insurance Claim Receipt

NOTE NO.28

OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

Unspent Liabilities/Sundry Balances Written Back (Net)
Rent Received

Net Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency transactions - other
Gain on Security Deposit

Misc Receipt

Profit on sale of Investment

Provision for doubtful debts written back

Provision for Diminution in value of Investment Written Back
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126.80 103.41
943.83 345.08
1,070.63 448.49
85.97 78.60
85.97 78.60
34,742.77 24,883.97
494.56 87.24
836.05 371.56
- 187.29
66.83 32.40
37.02 -
36,177.23 25,562.46
264.49 123.08
32.45 17.82
3.60 3.60
- 255.58
33.97 18.18
3.59 2.87
0.25 0.06
4.35 28.10
316.03 -
658.73 449.29
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CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

As at
31" March, 2022

As at
31 March, 2021

NOTE NO.29

COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
Opening Stock of Raw Material

Add:- Purchases and incidental Expenses
Less:- Closing Stock of Raw Materials

NOTE NO.30

(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES ON FINISHED GOODS,

WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND TRADED GOODS, ETC.

Closing Inventories

Work-in-Progress

Finished Goods

Waste

Scrap and Resiudal Materials

Opening Inventories

Work-in-Progress

Finished Goods

Waste

Scrap and Resiudal Materials

NOTE NO.31
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Benefits, etc.

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds, etc.

Employees Welfare Expenses
Workman Compensation

NOTE NO.32

FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expense on Loans*
Interest on Raw Material
Other Borrowing Costs
Interest on Lease Liabilities

Total

Total

*(After adjustment of Rs. 5.48 Lakh (PY Rs. 21.87 Lakh ) towards interest

subsidies under TUFS/ state schemes.
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2,052.19 1,028.16
17,518.06 13,525.97
1,272.20 2,052.19
18,298.05 12,501.94
1,119.04 1,326.10
1,883.70 1,123.87
1.15 10.87

2.84 1.57
3,006.73 2,462.41
1,326.10 1,441.16
1,123.87 861.51
10.87 23.57
1.57 2.30
2,462.41 2,328.54
(544.32) (133.87)
4,362.87 3,733.49
293.43 244.77
52.14 42.77
2.31 213.64
4,710.75 4,234.67
800.26 582.05
10.07 -
392.91 375.28
11.61 7.47
1,214.85 964.80
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CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

As at
31" March, 2022

As at
31 March, 2021

NOTE NO.33
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

On Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets

On Right to use Assets
On Investment Property

NOTE NO.34

OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spares

Packing Materials

Power and Fuel

Freight and Transportation

Rent

Repair & Maintenance

- Plant & Equipments

- Buildings

Insurance

Rates & Taxes

Travelling and Conveyance

Commission and Brokerage on sales
Corporate Social Responsibilty (CSR) Expenses
Bad Debts / Irreocoverable Debts Written Off
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Provision for Doubtful Debts Expenditure
Loss on disposal of Long Term Investment
Loss on Sales of MEIS Licence

Exchange Difference

Miscellaneous Expenses

693.69 618.01
155.59 138.16
3.70 3.70
852.98 759.87
943.22 776.74
772.80 506.81
3,080.27 2,970.43
2,762.30 975.67
16.55 17.13
62.00 56.68
88.64 53.46
63.18 53.73
17.67 10.81
62.39 36.53
607.05 686.50
19.12 13.11

- 32.73

64.74 14.98
9.61

309.19 -
29.07 -
74.83 -
595.50 433.19
9,568.52 6,648.11

-65-



. RELIANCE

CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

As at
31" March, 2022

As at
31 March, 2021

NOTE NO.35

Income Tax

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Tax

Tax for earlier year

Deferred Tax

Mat Credit Entiltlement

Total Tax Expense

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

Particulars

Net profit before income tax

Applicable Statutory Income Tax Rate

Income Tax calculated at 29.12% (previous year was 27.82%)
Add:- Tax Incidence on addtions

i) 43B Disallowance

ii) Other Disallowances

TOTAL- A
Less:- Tax incidence on deduction
i) Difference of Book Dep and Income tax Dep
ii) Allowance u/s 43-B
iii) Others

TOTAL- B
Reported Income Tax Expenses NET (A-B)

Effective Tax Rate (%)
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501.00 170.50
4.08 18.79
416.83 178.78

- (24.97)

921.91 343.10
2,735.13 1,036.23
29.12% 27.82%
796.47 288.28
28.80 -
132.91 37.44
958.18 325.72
278.31 106.42
22.66 23.31
156.21 54.73
457.18 184.46
501.00 141.26
18.32 13.63
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NOTENO. 36

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements:

1

e

CORPORATE INFORMATION :

Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited (CIN No.L40102RJ1977PLC001994) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in
India and its shares are publicly traded onthe BSE, inIndia. The registered office of Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited is at Village
Kanpur,Post Box No 73, Udaipur District,Rajasthan 313003. The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
Synthetic & blended Yarn.

. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed under Section

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Date of Transition to Ind AS 2017 is
01.04.2016.

. Historical cost convention

"The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
1) certainfinancial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;

2) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value."

Use of estimates and judgments

"The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and
are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the
Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the period in which the results are known/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but
provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date."

. Current non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle (twelve months)
and other criteria set outin the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act., 2013.

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Significant Accounting Policies

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

The company consider the previous GAAP carriying value of all its Propreties, Plants and Equipment except freehold and leasehold
land as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. 1st April 2016. The Company has adopted optional exemption under IND AS 101 to
measure free hold land & lease hold land at fair value and consequently the fair fair value has been assumed to be deemed cost in
case of free hold land & lease hold land on the date of transition.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired after the transition dates are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost include
expenses directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
mannerintended by management.

(ii) Intangible Assets :

License fees and associated implementation costs incurred for Computer Software are measured initially at cost only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured reliably. After initial
recognition, anintangible assetis carried at its cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(iii) Depreciation/Amortisation

"Deprreciation on Property , Plant & Equipment is calculated on straight line method using the rates arrived at based on the
estimated useful life reviewed at the end of year which is same as given in schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 except as under : -
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- Office Equipments are depreciated over 10 years.
-Intangible Assets (Computer Software) isamortised over 5 Years.

-Individual Assets costing below 5000/- are depreciated on prorata basis over one year from the date of acquisition."

(iv) InvestmentProperty

(v)

"Investment properties are measured at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, upon sale, disposition and
withdrawal from permanent use of the assets and when no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. The resultant
gains or losses are recognised in statement of profitand loss."

Non Current Investments :

Investment are valued at fair market value on the reporting date either through other comprehensive income, or through the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

(vi) Valuation of Inventories:

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and spares, Finished Goods are stated 'at cost or net realisable value,
whichever is lower'. Goods-in-Transit are stated 'at cost'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of stores and spares has been computed on
weighted Average method and raw material has been computed on First-in-First-out Method, Scrap and waste has been valued on
net realisable value. Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary. Scrap and waste
has beenvalued at net reliasable value.

(vii) Lease

The Company's lease asset class primarily consists of lease for building and leasehold land. The Company, at the inception of a
contract, assesses whether the contractis alease or not alease. A contract s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of anidentified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contract existing and
entered into on or after April 1, 2019. The Company has elected not to recognize Right-of-use Assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.The Company recognizes a Right-of-use Asset and a lease
liability at the lease commencement date.The Right-of-use Asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial costs incurred. The
Right-of-use Asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the
lease term. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured
on amortized cost basis.In the comparative period, lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profitand loss over the lease term

(viii)Revenue/Income Recognition:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Revenue from contract with customers

"Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customersatan
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange of promised performance
obligations.

In case of sale of goods, transfer of control of the goods to the customer generally coincides with dispatch of goods to customer and is
measured at a transaction value representing the related performance obligation. Transaction price is determined after considering
theimpact of variable considerations, returns, claims, rebates and other pricing allowances, trade & volume discounts (ifany)."

Other Operating Revenue Export Incentives

Revenue in respect of the export incentives is recognized on post export basis. Duty Drawback benefits are accounted for on
accrual basis.

Interest:-

Interestincome is recognised using the Effective Interest Method.
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(d)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii

Insurance and Other Claim:-

Revenueinrespect of insurance & other claimsis recognized when no significant uncertainty exists with regard to the amount to be
realized and the ultimate collection thereof.

Employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services
up tothe end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Defined Contribution Plans:
Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity and Compensatory Absence

The Company provides for Gratuity and Compensatory Absence, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees of
the Company. The present value of the obligations under such defined benefit plansis determined based on actuarial valuations
using the Projected Unit Cost Method.

Actuarial gain/loss, if any, arising from or adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to Other
Comprehensive incomein the period in which they arise.

(a) Foreign Currency Transactions:
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised gains and
losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the resultant
exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Exchange Forward Contracts:

The company uses Exchange Forward Contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency related to firm commitments
and highly probable forecasted transactions. The company does not enters into any forward contracts which are intended for
trading or speculation purposes.

Profit/ Loss on cancellation of unutilsed portiion of forward Exchange contracts is accounted for as income/ Expense for the
period in which cancellation of contract take place.

The company accounts for Mark to Market (MTM) gains/losses on unutlised foreign exchange forward contracts at the end of each
reporting period.

(C) Borrowing Costs:

Interest and other costs connected with the borrowing for the acquisition / construction of qualifying fixed assets are capitalised
up to the date such asset are put to use and other borrowing cost are charged to statement of profit & loss. Borrowing cost includes
exchange rate difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost

Research and Development:

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged as expenses under the head "Research and Development" in the
year in which it is incurred. Capital expenditure incurred on equipment and facilities that are acquired for research and
development activitiesis capitalised and depreciated according to the policy followed by the Company.

) Taxation:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax (including MAT)
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(a) Currenttax:-

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount to be recovered from or paid to taxation authorities. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are according to the prevaling tax Law on the reporting date. Income tax expense is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, insuch cases the taxis recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(b) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that itis probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are off set, and presented as net.The carrying amount of deferred tax asset / liability is reviewed at each reporting date
and necessasry adjustments are made in the books of accounts accordingly.
(c) MAT:

Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which
the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss
accountand shown as MAT credit entitlement.

(xiii) Government Grant/ Interest Subsidy:

Government Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached condition
will be complied with. Grants related to specific fixed assets are deducted from the gross value of the concerned assets in arriving
at their book values. Investment subsidy/employment generation subsidy / Interest rate subsidy and other revenue grants are
credited to Statement of Profit and Loss or deducted from the related expenses.

(xiv) Impairment of Non Financial Assets:

The Management periodically assesses using external and internal sources whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Impairment of an asset occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value of the cash flow expected to arise
from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. A provision for impairment loss is made when the recoverable
amount of the assetis lower thanthe carryingamount.

(xv) Provisions and Contingent liabilites and Contigent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Contingent Liabilities are
disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be
made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

(xvi) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, bank overdraft,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
orlessthatare readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(xvii)Dividend:-
Final dividend on Equity shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and interim dividend are

recorded as a liability on the date of declaration bythe company's Board of Directors.
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(xviii) EarningPer Share -

Basic earning per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earning per equity share is computed by
dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earning per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have

beenissued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

NOTE NO. 37
Fair value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Rs. In Lakh
Sr. Particulars Fair Value | Note | Asat31st March, 2022 | As at 31st March, 2021
No. Hirarchy No. Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
| Financial Assets
(a) At Fair Value :- Level 1 A - - 10.06 10.06
- Investments in Mutual Funds
(b) At Amortised Cost
- Trade Receivables 543.43 543.43 1,062.30 1,062.30
- Other Financial Assets 1,241.41 1,241.41 1,056.53 1,056.53
- Cash and Cash Equivalents B 6.86 6.86 31.92 31.92
- Other Bank Balances 5,773.18 5,773.18 | 3,223.60 3,223.60
Total Financial Assets 7,564.88 7,564.88 5,384.41 5,384.41
] Financial Liabilities
(a) At Amortised Cost
- Borrowings 12,474.24 | 12,474.24 9,631.96 9,631.96
- Trade Payables B 3,002.52 3,002.52 1,974.78 1,974.78
- Lease Liabilities 321.98 321.98 104.32 104.32
- Other Financial Liabilities 1,671.94 1,671.94 1,500.23 1,500.23
Total Financial Liabilities 17,470.68 | 17,470.68 | 13,211.29 13,211.29

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which instruments could be exchanged in a current
transaction between the willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

(A) The Company has opted to fair value its unquoted equity instruments at its Net Asset Value through Retained Earnings.

(B) The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, loans, other financial assets, short term
borrowings, trade payables, and other financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. Company has adopted Effective Interest Rate Method (EIR) for fair valuation of long term

borrowings.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
prices) orindirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial Instruments

liability, either directly (i.e. as

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

1 Financial Assets

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement
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(b)

(c)

(d)

2

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and liabilities, which are not fair value through profit and loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial Assets other than Equity Instruments
(i) Financial Assets carried at Amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in otherincome using the effective rate interest (“EIR”) method.

(ii) Financial Assets at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

Afinancial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal
outstanding. They are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income is reclassified from the OCl to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Financial Asset at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):
Afinancial asset whichis not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value through profitand loss.
Equity Instruments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity Instruments, which are held for trading are classified as Fair value through
Profit or Loss. For equity investments other than held for trading, the Company has exercised irrevocable option to recognise fair
value changes in 'Other Comprehensive Income' (OCl). The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis
for those investments which are strategic and are not intended for sale. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as
at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. Gain/(Loss) on sale of such
investment are transferred from OCl to Retained Earnings.
Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Company derecognizes financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets isimpaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company determines expected credit losses after
takinginto account the past history of recovery, risk of default of the counterparty, existing market conditions, etc. The impairment
methodology is applied on individual customer basis and depends on whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk sinceinitial recognition.
Financial Liabilities
(a) Recognition and Initial Measurement:
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables or as
derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
(b) Subsequent Measurement:
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPLIf it is classified
as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gainsand
losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognitionis also recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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(c) Derecognition:
Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
3 Offsetting Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously

4 The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate swaps and to
manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date
when the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately.

NOTENO .38
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies:

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of Financial Risk from its Operations. The key financial risk include Market risk, Credit

riskand Liquidity risk.

(a) Market Risk: Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changesin market prices. Market risk comprises mainly three types of risk:, Foreign currency risk, Interest rate risk and other price
risk such as Equity price riskand Commodity Price risk.

(b) "Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions
of imports, exports and borrowing primarily with respect to USD and Euro. The Company's exports are denominated generally in
USD, providing a natural hedge to some extent against foreign currency payments on account of imports of raw materials and/or
the payment of borrowings. The foreign currency transaction risk are managed through selective hedging programmes by way of
forward contracts including for underlying transactions having firm commitments or highly probable forecast of crystalisation.

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure in foreign currency. The details of foreign currency exposures
hedged by derivative instruments and those have not been hedged are as follows:

Particulars Currency As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
In Foreign Rs. In Lakh In Foreign Rs. In Lakh
Currency Currency

Hedged :

Forward exchange

contracts outstanding

Long-term borrowing usbD

Export Outstanding Rs. 366.98 791.34

Total usD - 366.98 - 791.34

Unhedged :

Long-term borrowings usbD - - - -
EUR - - - -

Long-term borrowings FCNR usbD - - - -
EUR - - -

Commission in Export Sales usD 176,038.00 133.42 202,522 148.07
EUR 15,375 13.25

Bank/ Cash Balances usD - -
EUR 150.00 0.13 150 0.13

Import usbD - -
EUR

Total usD 176,038.00 133.42 202,522 148.07
EUR 150.00 0.13 15,525 13.38
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(c) Foreign Currency Sensitivity:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD with all other variables held constant. The
impact on company's profit before tax is due to changes in the foreign exchange rate for:

Particulars . Asat X o

31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021
Change in USD -3% -3%
Effect on profit before tax (Rs. In Lakh) (4.00) (3.74)
Change in USD 3% 3%
Effect on profit before tax (Rs. In Lakh) 4.00 3.74

Particulars . As at . Asat

31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021
Change in EUR 5% +5%
Effect on profit before tax (Rs. In Lakh) - 0.92
Change in EUR -7% -7%
Effect on profit before tax (Rs. In Lakh) - (0.92)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market
environment.

(d) Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity:
The Company is having fixed rate long term borrowings which are not exposed to any risk of changes in market interest rates.
(e) Commodity price risk:

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the purchase of raw material
and therefore, require a continuous supply of certain raw materials. To mitigate the price risk, the company has an approved
supplier base to get the best competitive prices for the commodities and to manage the cost without any compromise on quality.
(f) Equity pricerisk:
The Company's exposure to equity instruments price risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in the
balance sheet at fair value through OCI. Having regard to the nature of securities, intrinsic worth, intent and long term nature of
securities held by the company, fluctuation in their prices are considered acceptable and do not warrant any management
estimation.
(g) CreditRisk:

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might not honor its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
toafinancial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables).

Trade Receivables:

Customer credit risk is managed based on company's established policy, procedures and controls. The company assesses the
credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

Creditriskis reduced by receiving pre-payments and export letter of credit to the extent possible. The Company has a well defined
sales policy to minimize its risk of credit defaults. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and assessed. The
Company follows the simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss and the same, if any, is provided as per its respective
customer's credit risk as on the reporting date

(h) Deposits with Bank:

The deposits with banks constitute mostly the investment made by the company against bank guarantee and letter of credits and
are generally not exposed to credit risk.
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(i) Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk, where the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Rs. in Lakh

Particulars Carrying Payable on Upto 1 to 5 years

Value Demand 12 Months
As at 31st March 2022
Borrowings* 12,474.24 7,769.19 775.30 3,929.75
Trade and Other Payables 3,002.52 3,002.52
Total 15,476.76 7,769.19 3,777.82 3,929.75
As at 31st March 2021
Borrowings* 9,631.96 6,245.92 901.92 2,484.12
Trade and Other Payables 1,974.78 - 1,974.78
Total 11,606.75 6,245.92 2,876.70 2,484.12

* Including working capital facility from consortium banks renewed every year and current maturity of long-term borrowings.

NOTE NO. 39
Capital Management:

The Company's policy is to maintain an adequate capital base so as to maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development. Capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders.The Company
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net Debt is calculated as borrowings less

cash and cash equivalents.

Rs. in Lakh

Particulars

As at
31" March, 2022

As at
31" March, 2021

Borrowings* 12,474.24 9,631.96
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents and Other Bank balances 5,780.04 3,255.52
Net debt 6,694.21 6,376.44
Equity Share Capital 755.97 755.97
Other Equity 11,386.41 9,682.91
Total Capital 12,142.38 10,438.88
Capital and net debt 18,836.58 16,815.33
Gearing ratio 0.36 0.38
NOTE NO. 40
Particulars 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lakh Rs. In Lakh
3,868.47 NIL

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not

provided for
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NOTENO.41
Particulars 31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021
Rs. In Lakh Rs. In Lakh
Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of
i) Bonds executed in favour of Customs and Excise Authorities 100.00 100.00
iii) Claims not acknowledged as debts (Disputed by the Company and or appealed against);
a) Demand of Income Tax 1,055.15 -
b) "Demands by Excise department 2.65 63.38
(including Service Tax )"
c) Demands of workers 9.95 9.95
iv) Others 389.23 389.23
NOTENO. 42
Particulars As at As at

31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021

A) Amount Paid/Payable to Auditors:

a) Statutory Audit Fee 7.00 7.00
b) Tax Audit Fee 2.44 2.44
c) Other Certification Charges 1.60 1.60
11.04 11.04
B) Amount Paid/Payable to Cost Auditors Expenses
a) Audit Fees 0.60 0.60
b) Reimbursement of Expenses 0.23 0.26
0.83 0.86
NOTENO. 43

Accounts in respect of Current and Non-Current Liabilities, Trade Receivables, Other Current Assets, Loans and Advances and Deposits
are subject to confirmations of respective parties.

NOTENO. 44

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 25th May 2022 has recommended a dividend of Rs. 2.50/- on per fully paid up equity
share of Rs. 10/- each aggregating Rs.188.59 Lakh for the financial year ended on 31st March 2022. The same is subject to the approval
by the Shareholdersin the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

NOTE NO. 45

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of corporate affairs notifies new accounting standards or amendments to the existing standards under companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) rules as issued from time to time. On March 23 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below

Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipments

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognisedin the
profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant and equipment.
The effective date for adoption of thisamendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1 2022. The company has evaluated the
amendmentand thereis noimpact onits financial statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the "cost of fullfilling" a contract comprises the "cost that relate directly to the contract". Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fullfilling that contract (Example would be direct labour, materials) or an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The effective date for the adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1 2022. The company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.
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NOTENO. 46

Additional Regulatory Information pursuant toamendment in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 dated 24.03.2021 has been given

tothe extentapplicable to the Company.
NOTE NO. 47

Ratio Analysis

(Rs. In Lakh)
S.No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 % change from
previous year
(i) Current Ratio (Current Assets / Current Liabilities) 0.96 1.03 -7.08
a) Current Asset 13,088.26 10,564.59
b) Current Liabilities 13,670.15 10,252.71
ii) Debt Equity Ratio 1.03 0.93 11.67
a) Total Debt 12,474.24 9,631.96
b) Shareholders Equity excluding OCI 12,066.43 10,404.08
iii) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) (Earning available for Debt Service/ 1.95 1.30 50.56
Debt Service)
a) Earning available for Debt Service
Profit after tax 1,813.22 693.13
Add : Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 852.98 759.87
. Interest 1,214.85 964.80
Earning available for Debt Service (a) 3,881.05 2,417.80
b) Debt Service
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings and
Short Term Loans 775.30 901.92
Interest and Lease Expenses 1,214.85 964.80
Debt Service (b) 1,990.15 1,866.72
Explanation : Change in DSCR is due to higher profitability of the current
year as compared to previous year.
(iv) Return on Equity (ROE) (Net Profit after Tax less Preference
Dividend/Average Shareholder's Equity) 16.14% 6.87% 135.06
(a)Net Profit after Tax 1,813.22 693.13
(b) Average Shareholder's Equity
Shareholder's Equity excluding OCI at the Beginning of the Year 10,404.08 9,786.39
Shareholder's Equity excluding OCI at the End of the Year 12,066.43 10,404.08
Average Shareholder's Equity (b) 11,235.25 10,095.23
Explanation : Change in ROE is due to higher profitabilty of the current year as compared to previous year.
(v) Inventory Turnover Ratio (ITR) (Sales/Average Inventory) 7.63 6.09 25.23
(a)Sales of Product 34,742.77 24,883.97
(b) Average Inventory
Inventories at the Beginning of the Year 4,667.15 3,505.42
Inventories at the End of the Year 4,444.33 4,667.15
Average Inventory 4,555.74 4,086.29

Explanation : Change in Inventory Turnover Ratio is higher due to increase in turnover of the current year as compared to

previous year.
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S.No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 % change from
previous year
(vi) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio ( Net Sales/Trade Receivables) 63.93 23.42 172.93
(a)Total Sales 34,742.77 24,883.97
(b) Trade Receivables at the End of the Year 543.43 1,062.30

Explanation : Change in Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio is higher due to increase in turnover of the current year as compared
to previous year.

(vii) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 5.83 6.85 -14.82
(Purchases/Trade Payables at the end of the Year)
(a)Purchases 17,518.06 13,525.97
(b) Trade Payables at the End of the Year 3,002.52 1,974.78

Explanation : Change in Trade Payble Turnover Ratio is due to increase in Trade Payables at the end of the year.

(viii) Net Capital Turnover Ratio (Net Sales/Working Capital) (59.71) 79.79 -174.83
(a)Net Sales of Product 34,742.77 24,883.97
(b) Working Capital (Current Assets Less Current Liabilities) 581.89) 311.88

Explaination : Change in Net Capital Turnover Ratio is due to increase in sales of the current year as compared to previous year.

(ix) Net Profit Ratio (Net Profit/Net Sales) 5.22% 2.79% 87.37
(a)Net Profit 1,813.22 693.13
(b) Net Sales of Product 34,742.77 24,883.97

Explanation : Change in Net Profit Ratio is due to increase in sales resulted into higher profitabilty of the current year as
compared to previous year.

(x) Return on Capital Employed (Earning before Interest 14.61% 9.06% 61.17
and Tax/Capital Employeed)
(a)Earning before Interest and Tax

Profit before Tax 2,735.13 1,036.23
Add :Interest Expenses 1,214.85 964.80
Earning before Interest and Taxes (a) 3,949.98 2,001.03
(b) Capital Employeed
Tangible Net Worth (Equity less OCI and Intangible Asset) 12,061.03 10,400.63
Add : Total Debt 12,474.24 9,631.96
Deferred Tax Liability 2,501.57 2,042.87
Capital Employeed (b) 27,036.84 22,075.46

Explanation : Change in Return on Capital Employeed Ratio is due to increase in sales resulted into higher profitabilty of the
current year as compared to previous year.

(xi) Return on Investment (Earning on Investment / - -
Book Value of Investments
[Not applicable since no investment as at 31.03.2022]
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NOTENO. 48
Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses:

a) Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 2021-22 in pursuance to the provision of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunderis Rs. 19.11 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 13.08 Lakh)
(Rs. In Lakh)

SI.No. | Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Amount Amount Total Amount Amount Total
Spent Overspent Spent Overspent

a) Promoting Education and 18.53 0.65 17.88 11.18 0.35 10.83
Employment. Enhancing
Vocational Skills among children
and livelihood enhancement
projects.

b) Eradicating hunger, poverty and 1.23 - 1.23 2.25 - 2.25
malnutrition, promoting heath
care including preventive health
care and sanitation and making
available safe "drinking water"
and "disaster management",
including relief and rehabilitation
activities.

Total 19.76 0.65 19.11 13.43 0.35 13.08

NOTENO. 49

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act., 2006, to the extent ascetained and as per per
notification number GSR 679 (E) dated 4th September, 2015.

Particulars As at As at
31" March, 2022 31" March, 2021

(i) The Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 119.29 90.35
at the end of each financial year.
(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer. NIL NIL
(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment. NIL NIL
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid NIL NIL
(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding year, until NIL NIL
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductable expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro
Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006
NOTENO. 50
Earnings Per Share (EPS)- As at As at

31 March, 2022 31" March, 2021

The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic and
Diluted Earnings Per Share:

i) Net Profit (after tax )
ii) Basic/Weighted average number of

Equity Shares outstanding during the year (B)

iii) Nominal value of Equity shares (Rs.)

iv) Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (Rs.)
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NOTE NO.51
Segment Information:

(a) The Company has only one reportable Primary Business Segment i.e Yarn. Hence, no seprate segment wise information of
revenue, results and capital employed is given.

(b) The following table shows the distribution of Company's Revenue from operations by geographical market, regardless of where

the goods were produced : (Rs. In Lakh)

Sr.No. Geographical Segments 2021-22 2020-21
1 Domestic Market (Within India) 9,951.92 10,559.32
2 Overseas Market (Outside India) 24,790.85 14,324.65
Total 34,742.77 24,883.97

(c) Sales to three (PY. Four) Export Customers of the Company is Rs. 13878.39 (Previous Year Rs.8295.54 Lakh) which is more than
10% of the Company's total turnover.
NOTENO.52
Revenue from contracts with customers:
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Refer Note No. 52)

(b) ContractBalances

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021

Trade Receivables 543.43 1062.30
Contract Liabilities 943.83 345.08

(c) Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on payment terms of 30 to 90 days. Contract liabilities include
Advances received against delivery of Yarn. The Performance obligation in relation to revenue recognition arrising from contract
with customer is satisfied upon customer clearance of goods sold.

(d) Reconcilingthe amount of revenue recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss with the contracted price :

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Revenue as per the Contracted Price 34,870.70 24,889.25
Adjustment
Less : Customer Claim (127.93) (5.28)
Revenue from Contract with Customers 34,742.77 24,883.97
NOTENO. 53
Right-of-use Assets (Building) :
a. Lease Liabilities Reconciliation (Rs. In Lakh)
Sr.No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
i) Opening Lease Liabilities 104.31 186.82
ii) Lease Liabilities accrued during the year 292.43 -
iii) Interest on Lease Liabilities 11.61 7.47
iv) Repayment / Actual Rent 86.37 89.98
v) Closing Lease Liabilities 321.98 104.31

b. The Company has taken certain offices and residential premises under operating lease agreements for short period. The aggregate
lease rental of Rs. 86.37 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 89.97 Lakh) on such lease has been charged to the Statement of Profitand Loss.
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NOTENO. 54

Relationship with struck off companies (as identified by consultant on the basis of information furnished by the Company)

Shares held by Struck off Companies

Name of struck off company No of shares held at No of shares held at Relationship
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Vaishak Shares Limited 1 1 Not a Related Party

NOTE NO. 55

a. Quarterly return or statement of current assets filed by the company with bank in respect of borrowings from banks on the basis
of security of current assets are notin agreement with the books of accounts

b. Summary of reconciliation and reason of material discrepancies are stated as under

(Rs. in Lakh)
Quarter Name of Particular of Amount as Amount Amount Reason for material discrepancies
Bank security provided per books reported in of
of accounts Quarterly | difference
return
30.06.2021 IDBI / ICICI | Raw Material 1435.68 1445.94 -10.26 | Provision made in books on value of old stock
/ SBI etc.
Finished Goods 1412.83 1346.27 66.56 | Increases due to addition of transit stock in
books
Process Stock 1125.67 1217.44 -91.77 | Reduction due to NRV in some cases lower than
cost
Book Debts 1036.39 941.68 94.71 | In stock statements to banks, Debtor upto 90
days are considered
30.09.2021 IDBI / ICICI | Raw Material 1765.18 1768.95 -3.77 | Provision made in books on value of old stock
/ SBI etc.
Finished Goods 1321.80 1311.33 10.47 | Increases due to addition of transit stock in
books
Process Stock 1251.69 1337.79 -86.10 | Reduction due to NRV in some cases lower than
cost
Book Debts 1072.17 909.29 162.88 | In stock statements to banks, Debtor upto 90
days are considered
31.12.2021 IDBI / ICICI | Raw Material 1708.45 1714.47 -6.02 | Provision made in books on value of old stock
/ SBI etc.
Finished Goods 2135.38 2085.56 49.82 | Increases due to addition of transit stock in
books
Process Stock 1150.02 1260.64 -110.62 | Reduction due to NRV in some cases lower than
cost
Book Debts 407.7 1126.87 -719.17 | Transit debtors were added to the book debts
and in stock statement debtors upto 90 days are
considered
31.03.2022 IDBI / ICICI | Raw Material 1272.2 1279.91 -7.71 | Provision made in books on value of old stock
/ SBI etc.
Finished Goods 1883.7 1882.87 0.83
Process Stock 1119.04 1151.26 -32.22 | Reduction due to NRV in some cases lower than
cost
Book Debts 543.43 584.84 -41.41 | Transit debtors were added to the book debts
and in stock statement debtors upto 90 days are
considered
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NOTE NO. 56

The disclosures required as per the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS 19 - Employee Benefits) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 are as under:

"Defined - Contribution Plans

The Company offers its employees defined contribution plan in the form of provident fund(PF), family pensions fund (FPF) and
Employees State Insurance Scheme (ESI) which covers substantially all regular employees. Contribution are paid during the year into
separate funds under certain fiduciary-type arrangements. Both the employees and the company pay pre determined contributioninto
the provident funds, family pension fund and the Employees State Insurance Scheme. The Contributions are normally based on a
certain proportion of the employee's salary. "

Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan, recognized and charged off for the year are as under (excluding for on contracts payments):

2021-2022 2020-2021

Rs. InLakh Rs. InLakh
Provident Fund 85.89 74.38
Family Pension Fund 120.20 94.97
Employees State Insurance Scheme 69.92 59.91

"Defined - Benefit Plans

The Company offers its employees defined- benefit Plans in the form of a Gratuity Scheme. Benefits under the defined benefit plan is
typically based either on years of service and the employee's compensation (generally immediately before retirement). The Gratuity
scheme covers substantially all regular employees. The Company contributes funds to Life Insurance Corporation of India, which is
irrevocable. Commitments are actuarially determined at year end. The actuarial valuation is done based on ""Projected Unit Credit""
method. Gains & Losses of changed actuarial assumptions are charged to the profit and loss account. The obligations for leave
encashmentisrecognisedin the same manner as gratuity. "

Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)

Rs. In Lakh Rs. In Lakh

a. Reconcilation of opening and closing 2021-22 2020-21

balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Defined Benefit obligation at beginning 466.58 452.37
of the year
Current Service Cost 79.80 67.67
Interest Cost 29.62 28.44
Past Service Cost - -
Actuaria (gain)/ Loss (58.84) (13.66)
Benefits paid (60.71) (68.24)
Defined Benefit Obligation at year end 456.45 466.58
b  Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 466.13 428.11
Expected return on plan assets (0.79) (1.80)
Interest Incurred 32.19 29.46
Employer contribution 76.48 78.60
Benefits Paid (60.71) (68.24)
Fair Value of plan assets at year end 513.30 466.13
Fair value of Plan assets 466.13 428.11
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Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
(Funded) (Funded)
Rs. In Lakh Rs. In Lakh

¢ Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss for the year (58.84) (13.66)
Return of Plan Assets 0.79 1.80
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss for the year recognised in OCI (58.05) (11.86)
d Major Categories of Plan Assets as % of the Total plan 100% 100%

Assets Interest based Scheme with Insurance Companies

e Sensitive Analysis

Discount Rate 1 % increase 421.55 431.23
Discount Rate 1 % Decrease 498.00 508.86
Change in Salaries increase 1 % increase 496.59 507.36

% Decrease 482.22 431.89

f  Estimated expected benefit payments
(in absolute terms i.e. undiscounted)

FY. 2022-23 119.20 136.46
2023-24 25.77 18.86
2024-25 24.71 26.08
2025-26 10.22 21.85
2026-27 33.91 10.78
FROM 2027-28 TO 2031-32 119.21 128.60

g Acturial Assumption

Particulars

Discount Rates 7.10% 6.79%
Salary Escalation 4.00% 4.00%
Mortality Rates IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)
Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
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NOTENO.57
Related Party Disclosures:
Disclosures in respect of Related Parties as defined in Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24), with whom transactions were entered
intoatanarm'slength andinthe ordinary course of business for the year ended March 31,2022
(i) Key Management Personnel and Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Mr. Ramadoss Srinivasan - Chairman

Mr. Sanjiv Shroff (Managing Director)

Mr. Rahul Shroff (Wholetime Director Designated as Executive Director)

Mr. Ameya Shroff (Wholetime Director Designated as Executive Director)

Mr. Nand Gopal Khaitan (Non Exeutive Director)

Mrs. Dipika Shroff (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Ram Niwas Sharma ( Non Executive Director)

Mr. Narayan Shroff ( Non Executive Director)

Mr. Chandrasekaran Rajagopalan (CFO)

Mr. Chirag Gupta (Company Secretary)$

Relative of Key Managerial Person

Mr. Shanker Lal Shroff, Chairman Emeritus (Father of Mr. Sanjiv Shroff)
Mrs. Bimla Devi Shorff (Mother of Mr. Sanjiv Shroff)

Mrs. Kavisha Rahul Shroff ( Wife of Mr. Rahul Shroff)

ii) Enterprises over which key Management Personnel and relative of such personnel is able to exercise significant influence or
control

a) Indo Textiles & Fibres Limited

b) Spell Fashions Pvt.Ltd.

c) A.R.FibtexPvt. Ltd.

d) Khaitan & Co. LLP

e) A.R.Commercial Private Limited

f) A.S.Chemotex pvt. Ltd.

g) Sunrise Producers Pvt. Ltd.

h) Sunrise Cotton Industries Limited

i) Modern Fibotex India Limited
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Particulars Key Managerial Enterprises over which KMP is able to
Person refer to (i) exercise significant influence , refer to (ii)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

Legal & Professional Expenses Paid

Khaitan and Co. LLP 9.00 1.25

Lease Rent Received

Spell Fashions Pvt Ltd 3.60 3.60

Interest on Security Deposit

A.R. Commercial Private Limited 14.34 8.27

Indo Textiles & Fibres Limited 17.00 9.09

A.S. Chemotex pvt. Ltd. 2.63 0.83

Interest paid/ payable on Loans taken

Sanjiv Shroff 4.99 5.94

Rahul Shroff 10.47 3.84

Ameya Shroff 4.83 2.78

Modern Fibotex India Limited 109.54 101.58

Sunrise Producers Pvt Ltd 10.81 11.00

Loan Received

Rahul Shroff 66.00 57.00

Ameya Shroff 44.00 6.00

Sanjiv Shroff 30.00 -

Modern Fibotex India Limited 688.00 220.50

Sunrise Producers Pvt Ltd 2.00 -

Repayment of Loans Received

Rahul Shroff 65.00 42.15

Ameya Shroff - 37.95

Sanjiv Shroff - 122.53

Modern Fibotex India Limited 732.00 182.86

Sunrise Producers Pvt Ltd 2.00 7.66

Rent paid/Payable

Indo Textiles & Fibres Limited 46.35 46.35

A.S. Chemotex pvt. Ltd. 18.90 18.90

A.R. Commercial Private Limited 14.40 18.00
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Particulars Key Managerial Enterprises over which KMP is able to
Person refer to (i) exercise significant influence , refer to (ii)
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh Rs. in Lakh

Purchase for Sales Promotion

Spell Fashions Pvt Ltd 12.17 20.86
Year end Balance receivable 202.00 200.00
Year end Balance payable 241.22 164.49 962.55 1,016.11

Commission on sale of yarn
A.R.Fibtex Pvt. Ltd. 40.39 -

KMP Remuneration

Compensation to Key managerial Person

(Year End)#

Short Term employee benefit

1 Rahul Shroff 259.01 67.52
2 Ameya Shroff 247.20 60.35
3 Sanjiv Shroff 268.95 78.43
4 R. Chandrasekaran 55.55 47.26
5 Chirag Gupta$ 7.34 5.99

Note:

# The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel's stated above does not include provision/payment towards incremental
liability on account of gratuity and compensated absences since actuarial valuation is done for the Company as a whole.

S Mr. Chirag Gupta ceased to be Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f January 31, 2022. Further, his salary also includes
Leave encashment.

NOTE NO. 58
Previous Year, figures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever necessary.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 58
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
to Accounts ( Note No. 36 to 56)

For & On behalf of Board of Directors

As per our Report of even date
For Jain Pramod Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No. 016746N)

P.K. JAIN UTKARSH GAUR R. CHANDRASEKARAN SANJIV SHROFF RAHUL SHROFF
K/?ﬁne[)10479 Company Secretary Chief Financial Managing Director Executive Director
o M.No. A60237 Officer DIN- 00296008 DIN - 02301693

Place :New Dehli
Dated : 25 May 2022
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RELIANCE CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Registered Office: Village Kanpur, Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
CIN: L40102RJ1977PLC001994 | Tel: +91 (0) 294 2491489 ; +91 (0) 294 2491490 | Fax: +91 (0) 294 2490067
E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com | Website: www.reliancechemotex.com

NOTICE OF FORTY FOURTH (44") ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 44" Annual General Meeting of the
Members of Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd. will be held on
Tuesday, September 27, 2022, at 11.00 A.M. (IST) through Video
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Item No. 1 - Adoption of Audited Financial Statements

To adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022, together with the Reports
ofthe Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2 - Declaration of Dividend

To declare a Final Dividend of Rs. 2.5 /- per Equity Share of face value
Rs. 10 each for the Financial Year 2021-22.

Item No. 3 - Appointment of a Director retiring by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sanjiv Shroff (DIN: 00296008),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Item No. 4 - Appointment of a Director retiring by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Dipika Shroff (DIN: 00226941),
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.

Item No. 5 - Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company

To re-appoint M/s. Jain Pramod Jain & Co, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No.: 016746N) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and applicable
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof,
for the time beingin force), and pursuant to the recommendation of
the Audit Committee and Board of directors of the company, M/s.
Jain Pramod Jain & Co (Firm Registration No.: 016746N) Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi be and is hereby re-appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a second term
commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till
the conclusion of the 49th Annual General Meeting of the Company
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to be held in the year 2027, at a remuneration upto Rs. 9,00,000/-
(Rupees Nine Lakhs only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement
of out-of-pocket expenses, for the financial year ended March 31,
2023, and the Board of Directors be and is hereby further authorized
to finalize the terms and conditions of re-appointment, including
remuneration of the Statutory Auditor for the remaining period,
based onthe recommendation of the Audit Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and take all
such steps as may be necessary, proper, expedient and desirable for
the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Item No. 6 - Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditors

To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s. N. N. & Associates, Cost
Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 002322) Cost Auditors of the
Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 148 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force), the payment of remuneration of Rs. 70,000/-
(Rupees Seventy Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses at actuals to M/s. N. N. &
Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No.: 002322), who
have been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, as
“Cost Auditors” to conduct audit of the cost records maintained by
the Company for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2023, be
andis hereby ratified and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company,
be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this
resolution.”

Item No. 7 - Re-appointment of Mr. Ameya Shroff (DIN: 05315616)
as Whole-time Director designated as Executive Director of the
company

To consider the re-appointment of Mr. Ameya Shroff (DIN:
05315616) as Whole-time Director designated as Executive Director
of the company
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections
196,197,198 and 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company and subject to all other
requisite approvals, permissions and sanctions and subject to such
conditions as may be prescribed by any of the concerned authorities
(if any) while granting such approvals as may be applicable, and
based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, approval of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for re-
appointment of Mr. Ameya Shroff (DIN: 05315616) as Whole-time
Director designated as Executive Director of the Company for a
further period of three (3) years with effect from August 01, 2022 to
July 31, 2025 on the terms and conditions including remuneration,
as set out below, with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter and
vary the terms and conditions of appointment and/or remuneration
as it may deem fit, subject to the same not exceeding the limits as
mentioned in this resolution and as specified under Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 and/or any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof.

Name Mr. Ameya Shroff

Designation Executive Director

Basic Salary From Rs. 2,65,000/- upto Rs. 5,30,000/-Per Month

Commission Upto 2.5% commission on the net profit of
the Company, computed in the manner laid
down in the Companies Act, 2013. This is also
subject to the over and above remuneration
payable to all the Whole\ Time Directors as
prescribed under Section 197 read With
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
(including any statutory modification(s)
thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time beingin force).

House Rent From Rs. 60,450/ up to Rs. 1,50,000/-

Allowance/ RFHA Per Month

Other Allowances From Rs. 85,000/ Up to Rs. 1,70,000/-
Per Month

Ex-gratia in lieu of | From Rs. 53,000/- up to Rs. 1,06,000/-

Bonus Per Year

Variable pay As may be decided by the Board of Directors,

on the Performance as special incentive to
bepaid every year but shall not exceed Rs.
30.00 Lakh Annually.
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Leave Travel For family and self, once in a year as per

Concession rules of the Company, but shall not exceed
one month basicsalary.
Medical Medical Reimbursement expenses

Reimbursement incurred for self and family, but shall not
exceed One month basic salary a year or 3

Months' basic Salary over a period 3 Years.

Personal Accident Actual premium on personal accidental/

/Medical Insurance medical insurance for selfand the family.

Provident Fund, Superannuation fund and Gratuity as per rules of
the Company, Subject to ceiling as per guidelines for Managerial
Remuneration.

Car with Driver and telephone at residence are provided to the
Executive Director for business purpose as well as for personal use.
Perquisite value for the use of Car with Driver has been included in
his Computation of Income as per Section 17(2) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. However telephone provided to the Executive Director is
not a Taxable perquisite as per section 17(2) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

Encashment of leave as per rules of the Company.

Club Fees is subject to a maximum of two clubs, this will not include
admission and life membership fees.

He is liable to Retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT when in any financial year, the Company
has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the remuneration
including the perquisites as aforesaid will be paid to Mr. Ameya
Shroff, Executive Director in accordance with the applicable
provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors, be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and take all
such steps as may be necessary, proper, expedient and desirable for

nn

the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”.

By order of the Board
For Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Utkarsh Gaur
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. ACS 60237

Place: Udaipur
Date: August 11, 2022

Registered Office: Village Kanpur,

Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
CIN: L40102RJ1977PLC001994

Tel: +91 (0) 294 2491489 ; +91 (0) 294 2491490
Fax: +91 (0) 294 2490067

E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com

Website: www.reliancechemotex.com
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NOTES FOR MEMBERS' ATTENTION

In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular nos.
14/2020 and 17/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020
respectively, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary
and special resolutions by companies under the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the
threat posed by COVID-19”, General Circular no. 20/2020 dated
May 5, 2020, General Circular nos. 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021
and 02/2022 dated January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021,
December 14, 2021 and May 05, 2022 respectively in relation
to “Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM)
through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means
(OAVM)”, (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and SEBI
circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79,
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 and
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 12, 2020,
January 15, 2021 and May 13, 2022 (“Collectively referred as
SEBI Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM / Meeting”) through VC/OAVM, without the
physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is
being held through VC/OAVM. The registered office of the
Company shall be deemed to be the venue for the AGM.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”),
a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the
proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is
being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM,
physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with
accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the
Members will not be available for the AGM and hence the
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are not annexed to this Notice.
However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint
authorized representatives to attend the AGM through VC /
OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes on e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30
minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000
members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of
first come first served basis.
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a)

b)

b)

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No.
17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.reliancechemotex.com. The Notice can also be accessed
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited, and
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com, respectively, and the AGM Notice is also
available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the
Remote e-Voting facility) i.e., www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of
the Act, setting out material facts concerning the business
under Item Nos. 5 - 7 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. The
relevant details, pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing
Regulations and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in
respect of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at
this AGM are also annexed.

Book Closure and Dividend:

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the
Company will remain closed from September 21, 2022 to
September 27, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of
payment of dividend.

If dividend on Equity Shares, as recommended by the Board, is
approved at the AGM, the payment of such dividend will be
made within 30 days from the date of AGM, as under:

To all beneficial owners in respect of Shares held in electronic
form as per details furnished by the Depositories for this
purpose at end of September 20, 2022.

To all Members in respect of Shares held in physical form, after
giving effect to valid transfer, transmission or transposition
requests lodged with the Company on or before September 20,
2022.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining
to their name, postal address, e-mail address,
telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number
(PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank details
such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account
number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc.:

For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository
Participants (DPs)

For shares held in physical form: to the Company/ Registrar and
Transfer Agent in prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms
pursuant to SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated
November 3, 2021.



N

. RELIANCE

CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

10.

11.

12.

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January
25,2022, has mandated the listed companies to issue securities
in dematerialized form only while processing service requests
viz. Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from
unclaimed dividend account; exchange of securities certificate;
sub-division of securities certificate; consolidation of securities
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition.
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests
by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR — 4, on the
website of the Company's Registrar and Transfer Agents,
Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. at www.bigshareonline.com. It may
be noted that any service request can be processed only after
the foliois KYC Compliant.

SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has mandated
that all requests for transfer of securities including
transmission and transposition requests shall be processed
only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and avail
various benefits of dematerialisation, Members are advised to
dematerialise the shares held by them in physical form.
Members can contact the Company or Bigshare Services Pvt.
Ltd (RTA), for assistance in this regard.

In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose
name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per
the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to
vote.

Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

Members are requested to note that dividends not encashed or
remaining unclaimed for a period of 7 (seven) years from the
date of transfer to the Company's Unpaid Dividend Account,
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (“IEPF”) established by the Central Government. Further,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act read with
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“IEPF
Rules”) as amended to date, all shares on which dividend has
not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more
shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as notified by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs.

The Members/Claimants whose shares and unclaimed
dividend amount have been transferred to IEPF may claim the
shares or apply for refund by making an application to IEPF
Authority in Form IEPF 5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in). The
Member/Claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a
Financial Year as per the IEPF Rules.

It is in the Members' interest to claim any un-encashed
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13.

a)

b)

14.

15.

16.

17.

dividends and for future, opt for Electronic Clearing Service, so
that dividends paid by the Company are credited to the
Members'accounton time.

Payment of Dividend through electronic means:

To avoid loss of dividend warrants in transit and undue delay in
receipt of dividend warrants, the Company provides the facility
to the Members for remittance of dividend directly in
electronic mode through National Automated Clearing House
(NACH). Members holding shares in physical form and desirous
of availing this facility of electronic remittance are requested to
provide their latest bank account details (Core Banking
Solutions Enabled Account Number, 9-digit MICR and 11-digit
IFS Code), along with their Folio Number, to the Company's
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent - M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt.
Ltd. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested
to provide the said details to their respective Depository
Participants.

Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby
informed that bank particulars registered against their
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company
for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars cannot
act on any request received directly from the Members holding
shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or
bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the
Depository Participant of the Members.

Nomination Facility:

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19 (1) of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, as
amended, Members holding shares in physical form may file
nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company's
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of shares held in
dematerialized form, the nomination form may be filed with
the respective Depository Participant.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the
Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the
Members by writing an e-mail to the Company Secretary at
shareholders@reliancechemotex.com.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent to
those Members whose e-mail address is registered with the
Company / Depositories for communication purpose, unless any
Member has requested for a physical copy of the same. Members
may note that this Annual Report will also be available on the
Company's website at www.reliancechemotex.com

To support the “Green Initiative”, Members who have not
registered their email addresses are requested to register the
same with the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent/their Depository Participants, in respect of shares held
in physical/electronic mode, respectively.
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18. Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable

in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020, and the
Companyis required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid
to shareholders at the prescribed rates. For the prescribed
rates for various categories, the shareholders are requested to
refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The
shareholders are requested to update their PAN with the
Company/ Registrar and Transfer Agent (in case of shares held
in physical mode) and with the Depository Participants (in case
of shares heldindemat mode).

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not
liable to pay income tax, can submit a yearly declaration in
Form No. 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax
at source by sending an email to tds@bigshareonline.com
latest by 11:59 p.m. (IST) on September 18, 2022.
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Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not
registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate of 20%.

Non-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax
treaty between India and their country of residence, subject to
providing necessary documents i.e. No Permanent
Establishment and Beneficial Ownership Declaration, Tax
Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which
may be required to avail the tax treaty benefits by sending an
email to tds@bigshareonline.com The aforesaid declarations
and documents need to be submitted by the shareholders

latest by 11:59 p.m. (IST) September 18, 2022.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map
isnotannexed in this Notice.
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7.

INSTRUCTIONS TO MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND
FOR JOINING THE AGM, ARE AS UNDER:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the MCA
Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system will be provided by
NSDL.

The remote e-voting period commences at 9.00 A.M. (IST) on Friday, September 23, 2022, and ends at 5.00 P.M. (IST) on Monday,
September 26, 2022. During this period, Members holding shares either in physical or de-materialized form as on the Cut-Off Date i.e.,
Tuesday, September 20, 2022, may cast their votes electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.
Those Members, who will be presentin the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on the Resolutions through remote
e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM. The voting rights of
Shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the Cut-Off Date.

The Company has appointed Mr. Manoj Maheshwari, partner of M/s. V. M. & Associates, Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS 3355)
asthe Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting at the meeting and remote e-voting process, in a fair and transparent manner.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend / participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM,
butshall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on September 20,
2022 (“Cut-Off Date”).

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of
the Company after the AGM Notice is sent through e-mail and holding shares as on the 'cut-off date' i.e. September 20, 2022, may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request to NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or to the Company / Registrar & Transfer Agent. However, if
you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you
forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on Toll Free No. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30. In case of individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending the AGM Notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. September 20, 2022 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-
Voting system”.

E-voting Instructions: The details of the process and manner for remote e-voting are explained herein below:

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders holding securities 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.
in demat mode with NSDL. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-

Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under'IDeAS' section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provideri.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting

-92-



- RELIANCE

9 CHEMOTEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CIN L40102RJ1977PLC 001994

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under 'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility
by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

MSDL Mohile App is ovailoble on

" App Store ' Google Play

Individual Shareholders holding securities
indemat mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id
and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any
further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on
New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provideri.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to
castyourvote.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the
respective ESPi.e. NSDLwhere the e-Votingisin progress.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities
in demat mode) login through their
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in,
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available

atabovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in Demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depositoryi.e. NSDLand

CDSL.
Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
in demat mode with NSDL request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020990 and 180022 44 30
Individual Shareholders holding securities Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
in demat mode with CDSL request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-

23058542-43
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat

mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or onamobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” whichis available under 'Shareholder/Member' section.
Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservicesi.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login.
Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Your UserIDis:
Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your

user D is IN3QQ*** 2% ** ¥k

NSDL.

b) For Memberswho hold sharesin demataccount with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary |D is 12****#xk*xk*%%* then your user ID

¢) ForMembers holding sharesin Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***

a)
b)

c)

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' which was communicated to you.

Once youretrieve your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) Ifyour email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your email
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachmenti.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdffile.
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for
shares held in physical form. The .pdffile contains your 'User ID' and your 'initial password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not

registered.
-94-
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6.

a)

b)

c)

d)
7.
8.
9.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat
account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

Afteryouclickonthe “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and
General Meetingisin active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General
Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your
vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote,
tothe Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs.vmanda@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.
Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need
to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset
the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders
available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020990 and 180022 44 30 or send a request to
(Ms. Pallavi Matre) at evoting@nsdl.co.in
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PROCESS FORTHOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAILIDS ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE
DEPOSITORIES FOR PROCURING USER ID AND PASSWORD AND REGISTRATION OF E MAIL
IDS FORE-VOTING FORTHE RESOLUTIONS SET OUT IN THIS NOTICE:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and
back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cs@reliancechemotex.com/investor@bigshareonline.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or
copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar
Card) to cs@reliancechemotex.com/investor@bigshareonline.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing
above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat accountin order to access e-Voting facility.

THEINSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.
The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be
the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by
following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed
under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu.
The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by
following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (cs@reliancechemotex.com). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

OTHER INFORMATION:

1.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting (votes cast
during the AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting) and will submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour
or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall countersign the same. The results will be announced
within the time stipulated under the applicable laws.

The result declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.reliancechemotex.com and on the
website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.
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2. Subjectto the receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the Notice of AGM shall be deemed to be passed on the
date of the AGM i.e., Tuesday, September 27,2022.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory statement sets out all material facts relating to the
business mentioned under Item Nos. 5 to 7 of the accompanying Notice:

ITEMNO. 5

This explanatory statement is in terms of Regulation 36 (5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), however, the same is strictly not required as per Section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”).

The Members at the 39th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company held on August 28,2017, had approved the appointment of M/s Jain
Pramod Jain & Co (Firm Registration No.: 016746N) Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office till
the conclusion of the 44th Annual General Meeting.

After evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit,
independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the Company has, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held on
May 25,2022, proposed the re-appointment of M/s Jain Pramod Jain & Co (Firm Registration No.: 016746N) Chartered Accountants, New Delhi,
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a further term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of 44th Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 49th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027, at a remuneration upto Rs. 9,00,000/- (Rupees Nine
Lakhs only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and proposed the
same for approval of the members. Besides the audit services, the Company would also obtain certifications which are to be mandatorily
received from the statutory auditors under various regulations. The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee shall approve the revisionin the
remuneration of the statutory auditors, for the balance part of the tenure, based on the performance review and any additional efforts on
account of changesin regulations or management processes, business acquisitions, internal restructurings or other considerations.

M/s Jain Pramod Jain & Co have consented to their appointment as Statutory Auditors and have confirmed that if appointed, their appointment
will beinaccordance with Section 139 read with Section 141 of the Act.

M/s Jain Pramod Jain & Co has also confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the peer-review process of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) and hold a valid certificate issued by the 'Peer Review Board of ICAI'.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at ltem No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the Resolution
setoutatItem No. 5 ofthe Notice.

ITEMNO. 6

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the re-appointment and remuneration of M/s N. N. & Associates,
Cost Accountants to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2023.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 6 of the Notice for ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending on March 31, 2023.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, inthe Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in ltem No. 6 of the Notice for approval of the members.

ITEMNO.7

The Members of the Company at the 41st Annual General Meeting held on September 07, 2019, had approved the re-appointment of Mr. Ameya
Shroff (DIN: 05315616) as a Whole time Director designated as Executive Director of the company for a period of 3 years with effect from August
01,2019toJuly31,2022.

The present term of Mr. Ameya Shroff comes to complete on July 31, 2022. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 25, 2022 (based
on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and subject to the approval of the Members in the General Meeting),
re-appointed Mr. Ameya Shroff as Whole time Director designated as Executive Director of the company for a further period of 3 years with
effect from August 01,2022 toJuly 31, 2025.
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Mr. Ameya Shroff is not disqualified from being re-appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and has
given his consent to act as Whole time Director of the Company. Mr. Ameya Shroff satisfies all the conditions as set out in Section 196 (3) of the
Actand Part-l of Schedule V to the Act, for being eligible for his appointment.

Mr. Ameya Shroffis liable to retire by rotation and shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the Meeting of Board or committee thereof.

Further, Mr. Ameya Shroff has also confirmed that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI Order or any such
authority pursuant to circulars dated 20th June, 2018 issued by BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Brief resume and other details of Mr. Ameya Shroff is provided in annexure to the Notice pursuant to the provisions of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Statement of Particulars pursuant to Schedule-V of the Act

1. General Information

Nature of industry
Date or expected date of commencement of commercial

Manufacturing and Marketing of Synthetic Blended Yarn
The Company has already commenced commercial production in the

production. month of August, 1979.

In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of | Not Applicable

activities as

per project approved by financial institutions appearing in the

prospectus.

Financial performance based on given indicators. Particulars for the Financial year ended 31.03.2022 (Rs. in Lakh)
Sales including other Income 36835.96
Profit (before exceptional & extraordinary items & tax) 2735.13
Profit After Tax before other comprehensive income 1813.22

Foreign Investment and Collaboration if any No such foreign investment or collaboration except minor

shareholding of Non Resident Indians, if any.

2. Information about the appointee

Background Details Mr. Ameya Shroff, Executive Director of the Company since 2013. He is Bachelorsin Science in
Management Science, and Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical Engineering and Computer
Science and Master of Engineering in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge USA. He has been the Whole time Director
cum Executive Director of Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd. for last 7 Years and has been
associated with Textile Industry since then.

Rs. 2,47, 20, 000 Paid during the FY 2021-22

Past Remuneration paid during the
year 2021-22

Recognition or awards -
Job profile and his suitability

He looks after the day-to-day running of the company and has substantial power under
supervision, control, direction of Managing Director. He focuses on streamlining the company's
manufacturing processes with specific emphasis on lean ideologies, analytical reasoning and
increased flexibility. He is responsible for the organization's increased exports and it's focus on
diversifying into quality conscious industrial and medical textile markets.

Salary, perquisites and other terms as fully set out in item no. 7 of the Notice.

Remuneration proposed

Comparative remuneration profile with
respect to industry, size of the Company,
profile of the position and person.

Taking into account the responsibilities of the Executive Director, remuneration proposed to be
paid to him is reasonable and in line with the remuneration levels in the industry across the
country.

Pecuniary relationship directly or
indirectly with the company or
relationship with the managerial
personnel or other Director if any.

Son of Mr. Sanjiv Shroff, Managing Director & Mrs. Dipika Shroff, Director and brother of Mr.
Rahul Shroff, Executive Director of the Company.
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3. Other Information

Reasons of inadequate profit

The Company has earned a profit of Rs. 1813.22 Lakhs during the year ended on 31st
March, 2022. However The Company's net profit in increased due to better
performance but still the profit is inadequate to meet the minimum payment
required to retain the top Managerial Person (KMP).

Steps taken or proposed to be taken for
improvement

The Indian textile market is gaining momentum and is set for resurgence on account
of strong growth in the domestic and export markets. Your Company intends to
leverage this along with its long-standing customer relations, deep focus on
understand its customer's needs, excellent post-sales service, innovative product
development and versatile product mix to further strengthen its sales both globally
and in the domestic market. Furthermore, in its efforts to remain ahead of the curve,
the company has actively taken steps to enhance economies of scale, increase
productivity, reduce costs, shrink delivery schedules, invest in the research and
development of new products and aggressively pursue opportunities in new
markets. Finally, Your Company is also evaluating the feasibility of a diversification
and expansion project which will further improve the Company's bottom line.

Expected increase in the productivity and
profits in measurable terms.

Looking to the Company's strong performance during the Financial Year 2021-22.
The company is cautiously optimist for upcoming years. Due to modernization of old
ring frame and to continued focus on value-added products, consistent quality and
versatile product mix we expect better performance in the upcoming years.

Mr. Sanjiv Shroff, Mrs. Dipika Shroff, Mr. Rahul Shroff and Mr. Ameya Shroff Directors of the company for themselves and through their relatives
to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company, may be deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the

Resolution at ltem No. 7, respectively.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said Resolution. The Board recommends the Resolutions at Iltem no. 7 of the Notice for
approval of the Members by means of Special Resolution.

Place: Udaipur
Date: August 11, 2022

Registered Office: Village Kanpur,

Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003

CIN: L40102RJ1977PLC001994

Tel: +91 (0) 294 2491489 ; +91 (0) 294 2491490

Fax: +91 (0) 294 2490067
E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com
Website: www.reliancechemotex.com

By order of the Board

For Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Utkarsh Gaur
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. ACS 60237
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Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM (Pursuant to Regulation
36 (3) of the Listing Regulation and Secretarial Standards -2 of General Meeting):

Position/Post

Executive Director — Whole time
Director

Executive Director -Managing
Director

Non-Executive - Non Independent
Director

Name of the Director

Mr. Ameya Shroff

Mr. Sanjiv Shroff

Mrs. Dipika Shroff

DIN 05315616 00296008 00226941
Date of Birth 24.08.1990 17.05.1961 27.10.1962
Age 32 Years 61 Years 60 Years
Date of Appointment 01.08.2013 01.09.1988 10.02.2015

Qualification (s)

Bachelor of Science in Management
Science and Master of Engineering
in Electrical Engineering and
Computer Science

Bachelor of Science

Bachelor's in Arts in Economics and
Sociology and Minor in Political
Science

Relationships between
the Directors, inter- se
Manager and other KMP

Related to Mr. Sanjiv Shroff,
Mr. Rahul Shroff &
Mrs. Dipika Shroff

Related to Mr. Rahul Shroff,
Mr. Ameya Shroff &
Mrs. Dipika Shroff

Related to Mr. Sanjiv Shroff,
Mr. Rahul Shroff &
Mr. Ameya Shroff

Nature of expertise in
specific functional areas
and Experience

General Management Finance &
Risk Management Corporate
Governance & Compliance

And Overall more than 9 years of
experienceintextile industry

General Management Finance &
Risk Management Corporate
Governance & Compliance

And Overall more than 36 years of
experience intextile industry

General Management Finance &
Risk Management Corporate
Governance & Compliance

And Overall more than 7 years of
experience in textile industry

Name(s) of the other
Companies in which
directorship held as on
Date.

1. Spell Fashions Pvt. Ltd.
2. AR Commercial Private Limited

1. Spell Fashions Private Limited

2. AR Fibtex Pvt. Ltd.

3. A'S Chemotex Private Limited

4. Sunrise Producers Private
Limited

5. Sunrise Cotton Industries
Limited

1. Indo Textiles & Fibres Ltd
2. AR Commercial Private Limited

Membership/ Chairmanship
of the Committees of Board
of other companies

NIL

NIL

NIL

No. of Shares held in the
Company

1,24,000 Equity Shares

1,45,800 Equity Shares

2,31,150 Equity Shares

Remuneration sought to
be paid

As per Resolution set out in the
Item No. 7 of the Notices

Terms and conditions as approved
by Shareholders via Postal Ballot
dated February 10, 2021.

Remuneration last
drawn

Rs. 2,47,20,000 paid during
2021-22

Rs. 2,68,95,000 paid during
2021-22

Details of total compensation for FY
2021-22 are given in the Corporate
Governance Report

Terms & Conditions of
appointment/
re-appointment

Proposed to re- appoint for 3 years
at a remuneration and other terms
and conditions specified in the
Item No. 7 of the Notice

Terms and conditions as approved
by Shareholders via Postal Ballot
dated February 10,2021

Re-appointment in terms of Section
152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013

The number of meetings
of the Board attended
duringtheyear2021-22.

4 (Four)

4 (Four)

4 (Four)
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Position/Post

Executive Director — Whole time
Director

Executive Director —Managing
Director

Non-Executive - Non Independent
Director

Brief resume of the
director

A SB and MEng from MIT, USA,
Ameya joined the company in 2013
and has spearheaded the
company's Financial Management,
MIS and strategic cost-reduction
efforts. He has focussed on
research and development, on
expanding the company's value-
added product offering and has
revitalised sales in the domestic
market.

A Bachelor of Science in Chemistry
(Honours) from Kolkata University,
Sanjiv has been the Managing
Director of the Company since
1988. His thorough operational
expertise, industry insight and
uncompromising value system
have moulded Reliance Chemotex
Industries Limited into the widely-
respected organisation itis today.

A Bachelor's in Arts in Economics
and Sociology and Minor in Political
Science. She is into the role of
advisory with respect to business
operations of the company.

listed entities from which
the person has resigned
in the past three years

Nil

Nil

Nil

Note: For other details please refer to the Corporate Governance report which is a part of this Annual Report

Place: Udaipur
Date: August 11, 2022

Registered Office: Village Kanpur,

Post Box No.73, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313003
CIN: L40102RJ1977PLC001994

Tel: +91 (0) 294 2491489 ; +91 (0) 294 2491490

Fax: +91 (0) 294 2490067

E-mail: cs@reliancechemotex.com
Website: www.reliancechemotex.com

By order of the Board

For Reliance Chemotex Industries Ltd.

Utkarsh Gaur
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Membership No. ACS 60237
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